
  
 

 
 

AGENDA – Part A 
(Open to the public) 

1. Welcome, Apologies & quorum

2. Declarations of Interest by Board Members and Officers
Members and officers to declare any interests not in the Register

3. Minutes of previous meeting (Page 3)
To approve as a true record the minutes of the meeting held on 14 June 2017,
and to deal with any matters arising

4. Voice Your View

5. Fire safety update (Verbal)
Gareth Mitchell, Chief Executive

ITEMS FOR DECISION 

6. Hospitality & Gifts Policy (Page 11)
Owen Howell, Board Assurance Officer

7. Strategic Risk Register (Page 27)
Michael Hadjimichael, Director of Resources

8. Approval of Company Accounts (Page 35)
Michael Hadjimichael, Director of Resources

9. Performance Assurance Report (Page 91)
Karen Loweman, Director of Housing
N.B. This item includes a decision relating to a KPI target

STANDING ITEMS 

10. Finance Assurance Report (Page 107)
Michael Hadjimichael, Director of Resources

11. Committee Minutes (Page 111)
Board members are invited to ask questions and comment on the minutes of:

Finance & Audit Committee 6 June 2017 
Operations Committee 29 June 2017 

Continued overleaf 

COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED 
NINETY-SIXTH BOARD MEETING 

To be held 5.30 pm, Thursday 20 July 2017 
Room 1, CBH Offices, Rowan House 
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Colchester Borough Homes Ltd 
Company Number 4843624 
A Company Limited by Guarantee       
Registered in England 

 
 
 
 
12. Forward Look (Page 127) 

An update of future decisions required and items to be discussed at future 
Board meetings. 

 
13. Any Other Business 
 
14. Exclusion of the Public 
 
 

Forthcoming meetings: 
 

Meeting Dates 

Tuesday 19 September 2017 

Thursday 2 November 2017 

Wednesday 29 November 2017 

(To be rescheduled) 
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Minutes of the Ninety-fifth Board Meeting 

Held on 14 June 2017 at 5.30pm  
At Room 1, CBH, Rowan House, 
33 Sheepen Road, Colchester CO3 3WG 

Present: In Attendance: 

Anne Grahamslaw 
Alan Blois 
Cllr Nigel Chapman 
Julie Parker 
Glenn Houchell 
Geoff Foster 
Michala Carey 
Tina Graves 
Cllr Cyril Liddy 
Cllr Mike Hogg 
Dionne Philp 

(Chair) 
(Vice Chair) 
(Vice Chair) 

(From Item 5) 

Michael Hadjimichael 
Karen Loweman 
Mark Wright 
Karen Williams 
Matt Armstrong 
Tracey Brushett 
Ryan Curtis 
Polly Hardy 
Ria Eustace 
Sarah Jones 
Owen Howell  

Observing: 
Cllr Jackie Maclean 

Lynn Thomas 
Dawn Tibble 
Michael Campbell 

(Minutes) 

(CBC – Shadow 
Portfolio holder) 
(CBC) 
(Scrutiny Panel) 
(Scrutiny Panel) 

1. Apologies and quorum

1.1 

2. 

2.1 

Apologies were received from Cllr Daniel Ellis for absence. Notification had been 
given by Glenn Houchell to explain that he would be arriving after the meeting 
had commenced, owing to his work commitments. The meeting was declared 
quorate. 

Declaration of interests by Board Members and Officers 

There were no new declarations of interest. 

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 25 April 2017 and Matters Arising

3.1 The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as an accurate record and 
approved for signing by the Chair. 

3.2 It was confirmed that the actions arising from the minutes had been completed. 

4. Voice your view

4.1 There were no speakers for ‘Voice your view.’ 

Glenn Houchell joined the meeting at this stage. 
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5. Code of Governance 
  
5.1 Board discussed whether annual budgets (which are recommended for inclusion 

on the Code) should be kept confidential, with concern raised that these are 
dynamic documents (subject to changes through the year) and might be misread 
when read by the public without the explanatory information which is scrutinised 
by F&A Committee. 

  
5.2 Julie Parker explained that she had chaired the CIPFA working group which had 

produced the 2016 CIPFA principles of good governance and briefed Board on 
how they had approached the subject. The expectation of the CIPFA group was 
that public bodies would produce annual budgets which would be placed in the 
public domain, along with explanations regarding how this is monitored. This 
would be in order to show that budgets set were appropriate.  

  
5.3 It was suggested that one solution would be to produce a high-level ‘overview’ 

budget for the public domain, so as to show that budget setting was appropriate 
and to provide public assurance that CBH was a going concern. At this point 
Michael Hadjimichael reminded Members that CBC already publish the wider 
HRA budget annually (in January). 

  
5.4 Decision: Board agreed that the annual budget should be made available in the 

public domain. 
  
5.5 A discussion was held as to whether the Internal and External Audit Plans should 

be published or whether they should be kept confidential and whether publication 
could potentially introduce unnecessary risks to the Company if someone were to 
find a way of using this information to the Company's disadvantage. Members 
were assured that key financial controls were reviewed annually, mitigating the 
risk related to potential defrauding of the Company. Decision: Following 
discussion of the risks related to publishing the Audit Plans, Board agreed that 
the Audit Plans should not be included within the Code of Governance and 
should be replaced by the Internal Audit Charter and External Audit Terms of 
Reference. 

  
5.6 Decision: Subject to the amendment detailed at 5.5, Board approved the 2017 

Code of Governance. 
  
6. Scheme of Delegation 
  
6.1 Owen Howell notified Board that a reference to ‘Executive Director’ had been 

spotted within the glossary of the Operational Scheme of Delegation (pg. 2). In 
line with efforts to clarify that CBH currently has no executive directors, this 
reference will be removed. 

  
6.2 Board discussed the potential for confusion to be caused by the use of the term 

‘Director’ with regard to members of the top tiers of the management team 
(Directors Management Team/DMT). It was acknowledged that the term ‘director’ 
had legal connotations in company law, although it is common for the term to be 
used to describe management roles as well as to indicate company 
directors/board members. It was agreed that the most important points are: 
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 That CBH must ensure that all nomenclature used is used consistently 

 That Board is mindful of the difference between their role as company 

directors, and the roles of senior managers whose titles include the word 

‘director’ (but who are not company directors). 

 That CBH does not use the term ‘Executive Director’ as there are currently 

no executive directors on the Company’s Board. 

  
6.3 Following questioning, Owen Howell clarified point 3.4 to explain that, at G&R 

Committee, it had been asked whether the Operational Scheme of Delegation 
should include duties to notify Board or Board Committees when certain 
decisions were taken by officers. Officers were of the view that the Scheme 
should concentrate purely on listing the decision-making delegations and that 
duties to notify Board or Committees about such decisions being made should 
remain in the corporate documents, policies and procedures which detail how 
and when the decisions are made. Board agreed with this assessment. 

  
6.4 Decision: Board approved the updated Scheme of Delegation. 
  
7. Strategic Risk Register 
  
7.1 No new strategic risks had been identified. 
  
7.2 Board were briefed on the new Emerging Risk Register, which was now 

presented at each meeting of the F&A Committee and detailed potential risks for 
the future. This aims to provide assurance to Board that the management team 
at CBH are actively monitoring future potential issues which may affect the 
Company. An example of this is the emergence of the General Data Protection 
Regulation as a risk, and the need for CBH to work to ensure compliance before 
it comes into force.  

  
7.3 Decision: Board accepted the Strategic Risk Register. 
  
8. Revised Contract Procedure 
  
8.1 Michael Hadjimichael explained the management team’s recommendation that 

the limit for authorisation of contracts by officers should be increased from £100k 
to £250k. Contracts valued at over £250k are subject to public procurement 
regulations and require CBC approval. 

  
8.2 It was explained that all current high-risk contracts are in CBC’s name, with only 

low risk items coming under CBH’s name.  
  
8.3 Board asked for the basis of this recommendation and why £250k had been 

identified as a more appropriate limit for contract approval by officers, rather than 
other potential limits. Michael Hadjimichael informed Board Members that, as a 
comparison, the maximum contract value which CBC officers could approve was 
currently £500k. Board were informed that by changing the approval limit from 
£100k to £250k, this will produce operational efficiencies. The provisions in the 
Contract Procedure Rules will continue to apply and give assurance that the 
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entering into of contracts will be carried out in line with Company policy and best 
practice. 

  
 

8.4 Members emphasised the importance of having assurance that rigorous policies 
and procedures are in place to govern CBH’s tendering processes and the 
approval of contracts. This was the key consideration. 

  
8.5 Decision: Board approved the requested change to the Contract Procedure 

Rules and set the new limit for officer approval of contracts at £250k. 
  
9. Annual Health & Safety Report 
  
9.1 Ryan Curtis presented the Annual Report and detailed each point so as to 

provide assurance that CBH and the Board are discharging their duties with 
regard to Health & Safety. In addition to the content of this report, Ryan provided 
the following details: 
 
i. Item 3: All staff had received, or were booked into, in-house manual 

handling training. 

ii. Item 3: Bringing training in-house where possible will save £21k this year, 

with further savings in future years. It also simplifies training provision. 

iii. Item 3: An explanation was given of the main benefits from using the new 

Assure software, including details of how it assisted in the reporting and 

logging of Health & Safety incidents, reports and documents. 

iv. Item 6: The score of ‘limited assurance’ for the audit of insurance was 

explained, with issues identified. Work to improve the recording of 

compliance is ongoing, as is an updating of our process map. 

v. Item 3: Thanks to efforts by staff and their managers, there are now only 22 

outstanding DSE assessments yet to be completed. 

vi. Item 8: More Fire Marshals are to be recruited and trained so as to ensure 

a presence in offices once Working Smarter agile working practices are 

instituted. Fifteen volunteers have come forward. Training will be given 

relating to Project Argus (dealing with terror alerts and incidents). 

vii. Item 8: By setting more appropriate spacing between training given (e.g. 

five years gap between sharps training), this will realize savings in the 

training budget. 

viii. Item 9: The Assure system was helping people to report incidents. This is 

expected to lead to an increase in the number of incidents reported in the 

next Annual Health & Safety Report and helps CBH identify potential 

problems before they lead to injuries. 

ix. Item 10: Essex Fire and Rescue have a high level of confidence in CBH, 

hence they have not required us to be audited by them. We continue to do 

internal audits, with spot checks on sheltered accommodation. The Assure 

system is being used to record fire risk assessments. 

x. Item 10: It was confirmed that, relating to the Enoch House fire, the CBH 

officer Simon Leonard saved the life of the resident involved, putting out the 

fire and preventing damage to Enoch House whilst receiving minor burns 
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himself. A vote of thanks and praise was recorded for his actions. 

xi. Item 12: There are issues with verbal aggression against CBH staff. Actions 

taken to combat this include the issuing of radios to CBH staff at the Library 

to allow help to be called for. More conflict resolution training is planned for 

the future. 

  
9.2 At this point Board welcomed the tackling of areas of concern, especially the 

issues relating to safety and security of our staff. Concerns had been raised by 
Board about the exposure of staff at the Library and the Chair stated that, should 
officers recommend moving our staff from the Library to an alternative location, 
this would receive backing at Board level. Chair confirmed it is a key priority of 
the Board to ensure that officers’ exposure to risk is minimized as far as possible. 

  
9.3 xii. Item 12: With regard to use of the Peoplesafe devices, CBH is performing 

well when benchmarked against other organisations. Six further training 

sessions have been booked for September and good support is being 

given by Peoplesafe. 

xiii. Item 13: Ryan Curtis and Ellen Moore (Health & Safety Co-ordinator) had 

volunteered to take the NEBOSH environmental training and would take 

the exam in September. 

  
9.4 Board Members questioned why such a high number of asbestos checks 

continued to be needed. Mark Wright explained that the policy was to manage 
asbestos in place, especially where it is integral to a building’s structure. There 
are 83 locations where asbestos insulation boards are in place and these receive 
annual inspections to ensure they are in good condition. Much asbestos has 
been removed from properties and the ongoing surveys are refresher surveys of 
identified asbestos which has not been (or cannot be) removed. 

  
9.5 Members asked whether the member of staff who had acted to prevent loss of 

life and property fire damage at Enoch House (Item 10) had been formally 
recognized for his actions. Ryan Curtis confirmed that both CBH and CBC had 
formally hailed his actions and thanked him for what he had done. 

  
9.6 Members asked for further detail on the contractor problem relating to electrical 

works done by Protec Electricals. Ryan explained that work done by Protec was 
halted until the problem and its scale could be shown. They now only undertake 
a reduced level of works for Vinci, and all works have been inspected. This 
company no longer provides rewiring work for CBH. 

  
10. CBH Scrutiny Panel Report on Temporary Accommodation  
  
10.1 The report was presented by Dawn Tibble on behalf of the Panel. The Panel had 

been struck by how expensive the provision of temporary accommodation was 
for CBC and CBH, especially those properties in the private sector. 

  
10.2 The main recommendations of the report were highlighted, including providing 

increased guidance and information to those who obtained temporary 
accommodation placements (Recommendation 3). 

  
10.3 Dawn detailed the meeting that the Scrutiny Panel had held with Will Quince MP 
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to discuss ways to improve the provision, including offering financial incentives to 
owners of empty properties if they make these available for use as temporary 
accommodation. Mr Quince had assisted with looking for potential additional 
funding to defray the cost of using temporary accommodation. Unfortunately the 
calling of the General Election and the dissolution of Parliament meant that this 
had temporarily been interrupted. This would be pursued following the election 
and the Scrutiny Panel hoped to recommence their communications with Mr 
Quince 

  
10.4 Potential positive effects of giving pre-tenancy workshops for over-25s entering 

temporary accommodation were put forward, including the ability to recommend 
them to future private landlords (including those in the Private Sector Letting 
Scheme) should they engage successfully with the workshops. 

  
10.5 Board agreed that Scrutiny Panel reports like this were of great value for CBH 

and that it is important that the recommendations produced are considered and 
put into practice where they would enhance the Company’s operations. A 
commitment must be given to ensure that staff take up these recommendations. 
Decision: Board directed officers to produce a report in four months’ time to 
detail how the recommendations had been pursued. 
Actions: Karen Loweman to oversee a written response to the 
recommendations and the report requested by Board. Owen Howell to schedule 
this report to come to the Board/AGM meeting on 2 November. 

  
10.6 Board Members asked if it would be possible to channel some profits from 

external trading into implementing some of the recommendations in the Scrutiny 
Panel's report to help improve tenants’ lives at a vulnerable time for them. It was 
suggested that this could be taken up with CBC. 

  
10.7 Board asked if there was a standard for temporary accommodation to which we 

adhere. Tracey Brushett confirmed that CBH adheres to the national standards 
(which are being revised to take account of the content of the Homelessness 
Reduction Act).  

  
11. Review of the Resident Insight and Engagement Strategy 
  
11.1 Karen Williams explained that this report had been originally planned for 

September (to show progress after 12 months of the Strategy) but had been 
brought forward. Nevertheless, useful information had been collected and 
progress made. 

  
11.2 Further to the work done with claimants of Job Seeker’s Allowance (7.1), Board 

were informed that CBH had successfully won funding to assist this effort. 
  
11.3 At this point, Board Members were given copies of Appendix 3 (Difference, 

United) which gave case studies of a selection of tenants who had taken part in 
the engagement work. 

  
11.4 It was highlighted that the new participatory/democratic format of the Community 

Fund had proved popular with residents. Further improvements have been made 
to increase the number of tenants who take part in deciding upon which bids 
should be given funding. 
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11.5 In response to questions, Karen explained that the collection and use of insight 

data was an internal process, with sessions to be held with staff to show how the 
data can be used to help shape how their service areas operate. Expertise on 
using insight data is being provided by colleagues at CBC. An example of such 
use is to target potential situations of domestic abuse by flagging up ‘at risk’ 
cases.  

  
11.6 Gareth Mitchell explained that a key test for the use of insight data is to ascertain 

whether Board sees the quality of the data and subsequent actions/interventions 
based upon it. The Enoch House project was given as an example of effective 
use of customer insight. This includes the updating of policy to take advantage of 
improved quality of information collected. 

  
11.7 Board asked whether Village Voices had been discontinued. Karen confirmed 

that they had become Quality Assurance Advisers (QAAs), supported and 
assisted by the Community Caretaker Team who tailor their approach to suit 
residents’ needs. Action: Karen Williams to ascertain how many QAAs live in 
rural locations. Answer to be provided to Board Members. 

  
11.8 Board stressed the need to engage with all age demographics. Karen confirmed 

that the Company is using profiling data to target individual demographics. 
  
12. Finance Assurance Report 
  
12.1 Michael Hadjimichael confirmed that the Financial Statements would be brought 

to Board on 20 July. Board noted the Finance Assurance Report which detailed 
the year-end position. 

  
13. Performance Assurance Report 
  
13.1 Karen Loweman noted that this report included the full KPI dashboard 

performance as of 2016/17 year end. Key points and trends were picked out, 
focusing on areas of concern which were being actively addressed. 

  
13.2 Board Members asked whether over-occupancy levels should be recorded. 

Karen assured Board that CBH does collect data on this. Although this could be 
reported to Board, the presence of overcrowded households is due to a lack of 
suitably-sized stock available to rehouse them into and therefore CBH is not in a 
position to act to reduce number of households which are overcrowded. 

  
13.3 Answering a question as to why CBH sought to complete repairs by the end of 

the priority time (rather than as quickly as possible), Mark Wright explained that 
this allowed for a more efficient use of resources as it allowed Property Services 
to schedule works to make best use of operatives and resources. 

  
13.4 Clarification: 5.1 of the report incorrectly states that spending on temporary 

accommodation and former tenant arrears has an impact on delegated budgets. 
This sentence was included in error and Karen Loweman confirmed that this 
spending has no effect on delegated budgets. 

  
14. Committee Minutes 
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14.1 Alan Blois (Chair of Operations Committee) detailed the minutes from his 

Committee’s meeting on 11 May 2017. As an update regarding Maytree Court, 
only two tenants remained and both have been found alternative accommodation 
into which they will move. 

  

15. Forward Look 

  

15.1 Owen Howell confirmed that the date for the AGM was to be changed and the 
alternative date communicated to Board Members once this had been set, 
following consultation with all Members. 

  

16. Any other business 

  

16.1 No other business raised 

  
 With no further business, the open meeting concluded at 7.17pm. 
 

 

Item Action Who By When Done 

Item Action Who By When Done 

14 June 2016 

10.5 

Produce a written response to the 
recommendations of the Scrutiny and 
schedule this report to come to the 
Board/AGM meeting on 2 November. 

Karen Loweman 
to oversee report 

production 

Owen Howell to 
schedule this for 
2 November on 
Forward Look 

9 October 
2017 

 

11.7 
Ascertain how many QAAs live in rural 
locations. Answer to be provided to Board 
Members. 

Karen Williams 4 July 2017 Done 
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD 
 
 
DATE:  20 July 2017 
 
TIME:   5.30 pm 
 
VENUE:  Room 1, Rowan House 
 
AGENDA ITEM: 6. 
 
SUBJECT: Hospitality & Gifts Policy 
 
REPORT BY: Owen Howell, Board Assurance Officer 
    (01206) 282518  
     owen.howell@cbhomes.org.uk 
 
 
FOR DECISION/APPROVAL 
 
1. Approval Required 
  
2. Purpose of Report  
  
2.1 To review and approve the updated Hospitality & Gifts Policy, in line with 

recommendations from the Governance & Remuneration Committee. 
  
3. Background & Content 
  
3.1 Only minor changes have been recommended by Governance & 

Remuneration Committee following its review of this policy. These mostly 
involve correction of wording and typography, with two substantive changes 
being proposed: 

  
3.2 New paragraph 1.3 in Appendix 1: 

 
If Board Members or employees have concerns about whether to accept or 
give a gift or hospitality, they should ask the advice of the Board Assurance 
Officer or Head of HR & Governance. If doubt remains, then the hospitality or 
gift should not be accepted/given. 
 
N.B. Please note that the two words ‘or employees’ (as underlined above) 
were added after the Governance & Remuneration Committee gave their 
recommendation that this new paragraph be approved by Board. This addition 
is to reflect the fact that this policy applies to employees and Board Members 
equally. 

  
3.3 Amendment to paragraph 6.1 of Appendix 1 to allow for Hospitality & Gift 

forms to be reviewed and countersigned as and when they are submitted, 
setting a quarterly review as the minimum, but now allowing for forms to be 
signed off more regularly and sooner after their submission. 
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4. Risk Management 
  
4.1 If CBH were to have an unclear or inappropriate Hospitality & Gifts Policy, this 

would expose the Company to greater reputational risk through Board 
Members and members of staff potentially accepting or giving inappropriate 
hospitality and/or gifts. 

  
5. HR Implications 
  
5.1 No specific HR considerations, however the provision of clear instructions 

regarding the giving and receiving of hospitality and gifts will ensure that 
employees have the necessary guidance as to how to act to ensure no 
conflicts of interest or accusations of bribery arise. Failure to declare any 
hospitality or gift received, refused or offered may be treated as a disciplinary 
offence, so a contravention of this Policy may potentially result in HR 
implications, should the nature of the contravention be sufficiently egregious 
to warrant disciplinary action. 

  
6. Legal Implications 
  
6.1 Adherence to a strong and clear Hospitality & Gifts Policy can help ensure 

that no accusation of bribery or corruption can be levelled at Board Members 
or members of staff. 

  
7. Financial Implications 
  
7.1 No specific implications, however this Policy helps to ensure that Board 

Members and Staff do not make inappropriate offers of gifts or hospitality on 
behalf of CBH, which may potentially result in allegations of bribery or 
corruption. The investigation of accusations regarding bribery and corruption 
have cost implications for the Company. 

  
8. Value for Money 
  
8.1 An effective Hospitality & Gifts Policy is one of the corporate documents which 

ensure CBH uses its budgets effectively, by helping to ensure that any gifts or 
hospitality which are offered on behalf of the Company are appropriate and 
justified.  

  
9. Health & Safety Implications 
  
9.1 None. 
  
10. Equality & Diversity Implications 
  
10.1 None. 
  
11. 
 
11.1 

Residents at the Heart 
 
None 
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12. 

12.1 

13. 

13.1 

Decision Required? 

YES: Approval required 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Hospitality & Gifts Policy 
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Item 6 Appendix 1 

 

 

 

 

 

Hospitality & gifts policy 

 

 
Author:  Berkeley YoungOwen Howell, Board Assurance Officer 

 

 

Version 2.01 

July 2014July 2017 
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Glossary 

CBC Colchester Borough Council 

CBH Colchester Borough Homes 

CIPFA Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy 

DMT Directors Management Team – the executive 
management team consisting of the Chief Executive and 
Directors of Housing, Property Services and Resources. 

Contents 

1. Policy statement 3 

2. The legal position 4 
3. Consultation 4 
4. References 54 
5. Related documents 5 
Appendix 1 – Application of the Policy 6 

1. Introduction 6 
2.  General Advice 6 
3.  Hospitality received 7 
4. Gifts received 8 
5.  Hospitality or gifts given by CBH 9 
6.  Recording hospitality and gifts 10 

Document control sheet 11 
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1. Policy statement 

1.1 This policy applies equally to the staff and board of directors of 
Colchester Borough Homes (CBH), and to contractors employed by 
CBH. 

1.2 CBH requires contractors to comply with this policy through their staff 
protocols or codes of conduct. 

1.3 As a public sector organisation, CBH has a duty to ensure that its 
resources are utilised effectively. It must be impartial and honest in the 
conduct of its business, and employees and Board Members must be 
above suspicion. 

1.4 All decisions by CBH staff or Board Members on the provision or 
acceptance of gifts and hospitality must be able to withstand both 
internal and external scrutiny. They must be defensible as being in the 
direct interest of the organisation, as being proportionate to that 
interest and within limits that are acceptable to the Company’s Board. 

1.5 As a general rule, staff and Board Members should not accept offers of 
hospitality or gifts. Hospitality or gifts may only be accepted by staff or 
Board Members when: 

 The offer has been made for a proper purpose 

 Acceptance is consistent with the purposes of the Company 

 It is appropriate and its value is reasonable and proportionate to the 
circumstances 

 Acceptance accords with all Company policies and behaviours 

1.6 All offers of hospitality or gifts received by staff or bBoard mMembers 
must be recorded on Hospitality & Gifts Form A (see Appendix 2), 
irrespective of whether they are accepted, declined, returned or given 
to charity1. 

1.7 Hospitality and gifts may only be offered by staff or Board Members 
when: 

 The offer is consistent with the purposes of the Company 

                                            

1 It is recognised that senior members of staff may receive a high volume of unsolicited offers of 

hospitality made to a large group of people (for example, an email or mailshot to multiple recipients); it 

is not usually necessary to record refusals of  these offers where they have been deleted or disposed of 

without a response. However, where a personal refusal is expected or given, the refusal of the offer 

should be recorded. 
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 The purpose is not to influence improperly 

 It is appropriate and its value reasonable and proportionate to the 
circumstances 

 Provision accords with all applicable Company policies 

1.8 All hospitality given by staff or Board Members must be recorded on 
Hospitality & Gifts Form B (see Appendix 3). 

1.9 Failure to declare any hospitality or gift received, refused or offered 
may be treated as a disciplinary offence. 

2. The legal position 

2.1  The Bribery Act 2010 makes it an offence to offer, promise or give a 
bribe. The Act also makes it an offence to request, agree to receive or 
accept a bribe. Bribery is an attempt to dishonestly persuade someone 
to act in one's favour by a gift of money or other inducement. 

2.2 The Act also creates a separate offence of bribing a foreign public 
official with the intention of obtaining or retaining business or an 
advantage in the conduct of business. A corporate offence is 
committed where a commercial organisation fails to prevent bribery 
that is intended to obtain or retain business, or an advantage in the 
conduct of business, for the organisation. 

2.3 Board members are bound by the Companies Act 2006, which requires 
them not to accept benefits from third parties arising from their position 
as a director. 

3. Consultation  

3.1 A draft version of the document was reviewed at the Senior 
Management Team meeting on 11 February 2014 and the Directors 
Management Team meeting on 13 February 2014 and suggested 
changes were incorporated into the policy. 

3.2  The Governance and Remuneration Committee of the board discussed 
the initial draft of the policy at their meeting on 29 January 2014 and 
recommended the final version to the board for approval on 12 May 
2014. 

3.3 The Director of Resources reviewed changes proposed in March 2017, 
before the amended Policy was considered by the Governance & 
Remuneration Committee in March and April 2017 and recommended 
for Board approval on 25 April 2017. 
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4. References  

The following documents were consulted in the preparation of this policy: 

 Companies Act 2006 – Government Legislation (2006) 

 Bribery Act 2010 – Government Legislation (2010) 

 CIPFA Standard of Professional Practice on Ethics 

 CBC gifts and hospitality protocol 

5. Related documents 

 Anti-fraud & corruption policy 

 Board member Member code of conduct 

 Staff code of conduct 

 Drugs & alcohol policy 

 Hospitality & gifts form (recipient) 

 Hospitality & gifts form (provider) 

These documents are available from the Board Assurance Officer on request. 
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Appendix 1 – Application of the Policy 

1. Introduction 

1.1 These guidelines are here to help you decide whether you should 
accept offers of hospitality and gifts and when it is permissible to offer 
hospitality. You need to be very careful to ensure that the public 
confidence in your own integrity and the integrity of Colchester 
Borough Homes’ integrity cannot be damaged in any way by your 
actions. 

1.2 If you have any doubts about an offer of hospitality or gift, you should 
refuse and seek the advice of your manager or a member of the 
Directors Management Team. 

1.21.3 If Board Members or employees have concerns about whether to 
accept or give a gift or hospitality, they should ask the advice of the 
Board Assurance Officer or Head of HR & Governance. If doubt 
remains, then the hospitality or gift should not be accepted/given. 

1.31.4 Employees and Board Members are reminded that the highest 
standards of honesty and integrity are expected of those in the public 
sector. 

2.  General advice 

2.1   All offers of gifts and hospitality must be recorded on Form A (see 
Appendix 2), irrespective of whether they are accepted, declined, 
returned or given to charity  (see note 1 – Policy Statement). The 
recording of 'offers' is important because it identifies any individuals or 
organisations that are making inappropriate or repeated offers and 
protects the person receiving the offer from false accusations of 
inappropriate behaviour. 

2.2  Employees and Board Members are advised to treat with extreme 
caution any offer or gift, favour or hospitality that is made personally to 
them. The person or organisation making the offer may be doing 
business or seeking to do business with the Company or may be 
applying to the Company for some sort of decision in respect of which it 
is imperative that the employee’s or Board Member’s independence 
should not be compromised.  

2.3   If there is any doubt about the intention behind hospitality or a gift as 
an inducement, or the possibility of its being perceived as influencing 
an outcome such as the award of a contract, it must be declined. 

2.4   Where gifts or hospitality are offered that a reasonable and informed 
third party, weighing all the specific facts and circumstances, would 
consider trivial and inconsequential, these may be accepted. 
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2.5  Board Members are reminded that any gift or hospitality received 
should be declared by that Member at any meeting where the matter 
under decision relates to the provider of the gift or hospitality 
concerned. 

3.  Hospitality received 

3.1  You must use your judgement when accepting an offer of hospitality. 
You should ask yourself whether members of the public, knowing the 
facts of the situation, could reasonably think that you might be 
influenced by the hospitality offered. If the answer is yes, the hospitality 
should be declined. You should consider: 

 The person or organisation offering the hospitality. 

 The scale and nature of the hospitality. 

 The timing of the hospitality in relation to decisions to be made by 
CBH (eg, is a contract with the company offering hospitality due for 
renewal? Is the company offering hospitality tendering for work with 
CBH?). 

3.2  The following are examples of situations and circumstances where 
hospitality might be acceptable: 

 Routine meals at establishments used by the local business 
community, to discuss business or prior to or following such a 
discussion. A useful test will often be whether you would provide 
similar hospitality if the situation was reversed. 

 Customary lunches and dinners given at conferences, where 
invitations are formally received and accepted in advance of the 
conference. 

 Courtesy invitations by major companies providing services to CBH, 
eg, bankers, insurers, etc. 

 Invitations to join other company guests at sponsored cultural, 
sporting events or other public performances and openings or other 
special occasions. 

 An invitation to attend a dinner or function of a society, institute or 
other non-commercial body with whom the company has contact.  

 Invitations to attend functions where the employee or Board 
Member represents the company (opening ceremonies, public 
speaking events, conferences). 

However, the acceptability of hospitality depends greatly on the 
particular circumstances, for example who is providing the hospitality, 
why the employee or board member is there and the nature of the 
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dealings between the company and the provider of the hospitality 
offered. 

3.3  Some examples of situations and circumstances where hospitality is 
unacceptable are: 

 Paid or concessionary holidays or travel. 

 Other concessionary rates that are not openly and, as a matter of 
practice, available equally to other organisations. 

 Offers of hotel and/or theatre tickets (except in circumstances 
described in 3.2 above). 

 The use of company flats or hotel suites. 

 Extravagant meals at exclusive venues. 

 Frequent hospitality from one source. 

3.4 In general, it is usually more acceptable for you to accept hospitality 
when it is offered to a group rather than something that is unique to 
yourself. You should take greater care if you are offered hospitality 
when the person or organisation has current dealings with CBH or such 
dealings are in prospect. 

4. Gifts received 

4.1  The general rule is to politely and tactfully refuse offers of gifts from 
people or organisations that do or might provide work, goods or 
services to CBH. On the basis of CBH policy, refusals must be 
registered using Form A (see Appendix 2). 

4.2  Gifts of the following type may be accepted: 

 A modest gift of a promotional character such as a calendar, diary, 
or article for use in the office. There is no need to register these 
gifts. 

 A small gift on the conclusion of a courtesy visit to a factory or firm, 
or gifts that are presented at civic or ceremonial occasions. These 
gifts should be registered. 

 A small gift of nominal or sentimental value only where refusal 
would cause needless offence and the giver is not seeking a 
decision or business from the company. These gifts should be 
registered. 

4.3  These exceptions apply only to modest gifts and an expensive gift must 
not be accepted. No gift should be accepted that could lead a 
reasonable person to call into question your integrity or the integrity of 
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the company. Again, if you are in doubt, politely refuse the gift and 
seek advice from your manager or a member of DMT.  

4.4  While it may be acceptable to accept a token or small gift on one 
occasion, employees and Board Members should refuse repeated gifts, 
even if these are individually not of a significant value. 

4.5  Employees and Board Members should not ask for any reward, tip, gift, 
Christmas box or other inducement and should not put themselves in 
debt to someone where this could influence their work.  

4.6  It is recognised that some tenants and contractors wish to express their 
appreciation of service provided or a good working relationship and 
therefore give a small gift, especially at Christmas time. If possible, this 
gift should be shared with colleagues (eg, a box of chocolates). If it is 
not possible to share the gift with colleagues (eg, a bottle of alcohol), 
the gift should be given to your manager who will decide on the 
appropriate course of action; for example, the gift should be given to 
the Mayor’s charity or included in staff conference prizes. The manager 
must not keep the gift for himself or herself. 

4.7  Gifts intended for CBH as a corporate body or intended for a service 
area can be accepted but you must not retain these. Such gifts must be 
registered and then given to your manager or the Chief Executive of 
CBH, who will decide how to use the gift for the benefit of the company. 

4.8 Due consideration must be given to the CBH Drugs and Alcohol Policy 
before accepting any gift or hospitality involving alcohol. 

4.9  Cash or monetary gifts should always be refused without exception. 
These refusals must be recorded on Form A (see Appendix 2). 

5.  Hospitality or gifts given by CBH 

5.1 Hospitality may be offered to organisations on behalf of the company, 
but only with the express permission of a member of DMT or the Chair 
of the Board and on a scale appropriate to the occasion. This must be 
recorded on Form B (see Appendix 3) and given to the Board 
Assurance Officer. 

5.2 Appropriately authorised provision of refreshments for a group of Board 
Members, tenants or other visitors to CBH as part of an event or 
training session does not need to be recorded on Form B. However, 
care should be taken that the scale of the provision cannot be seen as 
lavish or excessive. 

5.3 There may be occasions when CBH wishes to mark the leaving of a 
board or staff member by purchasing a gift for them on behalf of the 
company. This may be done only with the express permission of a 
member of DMT or the Chair of the Board and on a scale appropriate 
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to the occasion. This must be recorded on Form B (see Appendix 3) 
and given to the Board Assurance Officer. 

5.4 This policy does not cover instances where a manager wishes to 
reward a member of their team for performance above and beyond 
their normal duties. Advice should be sought from Human Resources 
before any action is taken. 

6.  Recording hospitality and gifts 

6.1  All hospitality and/or gifts received, refused or offered, other than those 
specified in 4.2 and 5.2, should be recorded on the forms (see 
Appendices 2 and 3). The form should be signed and returned to the 
Board Assurance Officer within 28 days for inclusion in the Hospitality 
& Gifts file. These records are inspected and countersigned by the 
Director of Resources or the HR & Governance ManagerHead of HR & 
Governance on at least a quarterly basis. 

6.2 Failure to declare any hospitality or gift received, refused or offered 
may be treated as a disciplinary offence. It is your personal 
responsibility to ensure that your acceptance of hospitality and/or 
gifts is entered in the record. 
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES  
BOARD 
 
 
DATE:   20 July 2017 
 
TIME:   5.30 pm 
 
VENUE:  Room 1, Rowan House 
 
AGENDA ITEM: 7 
 
SUBJECT: Strategic Risk Register 
 
REPORT BY:  Michael Hadjimichael, Director of Resources 
    01206 507815   
     Michael.hadjimichael@cbhomes.org.uk 
 
 
FOR DECISION 
 
1. Purpose  
  
1.1 
 
1.2 

To approve the Strategic Risk Register and progress on mitigating actions. 
 
For the Board to suggest and consider any emerging risks that should be 
included on the Strategic Risk Register. 

  
2. Background & Content  
  
2.1 The Board approved a revised Risk Management Strategy at its meeting on 

12 September 2016. Under this strategy the Finance and Audit Committee 
(F&A) has a remit to scrutinise the Risk Register and to report to the Board on 
high-level and difficult to manage risks.  This is now a standing item on the 
agenda for all future meetings. 

  
Strategic Risk Register 

2.2 
 
 
 
2.3 
 
 
2.4 
 
 
 
2.5 
 
 
 

The strategic risk register was presented at the most recent Board meeting on 
14 June 2017.  No new emerging risks were identified by the Board at that 
meeting. 
 
The register can be found at Appendix 1. 
 
New Risks 
No new risks have been separately identified by management since the most 
recent meeting on 14 June 2017. 
 
 
Since the last Board Meeting, CBH has been actively engaging with CBC and 
residents regarding Fire Safety following the Grenfell Tower fire on 14 June 
2017. 
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2.6 
 
 
 
2.7 
 

CBH takes fire safety seriously. CBH will never take anything for granted and 
are already going above and beyond the Government’s latest guidance and 
instruction regarding safety checks on our properties. We will also act upon 
any further safety recommendations and possible changes to fire safety 
legislation that follow the outcome of the fire investigation and Public Inquiry, 
therefore due to the unknown nature of any possible changes and related 
financial implications of these will ensure that this remains on our risk 
‘watchlist’.  
 
Removed Risks 
No risks have been removed from the register since the last meeting. 
 
 
Progress on Further Actions: 
All identified actions remain in progress and are reviewed monthly by the 
DMT. 
 

3. Financial Implications 
  
3.1 Robust risk management and financial management is required to ensure that 

service delivery is not compromised and that financial exposure is mitigated.   
 
4. 

 
Value for Money Implications 

  
4.1 Strong financial control will identify and drive efficiencies, enabling resources 

(both financial and people) to service provisions that may require it. 
 
5. 

 
HR Implications 

  
5.1 All senior members of staff review their operational risks on a quarterly basis 

and are escalating these if deemed necessary. Risk management training will 
be provided to managers later in the year. 

  
6. Residents at the Heart Implications 
  
6.1 An action plan, including a communications strategy, will be developed to 

ensure that the impact of the Housing and Planning Act 2016 is made known 
to residents and to ensure that those affected will be assisted where possible. 
 

7. Legal, Health & Safety and Equality & Diversity Implications 
  
7.1 All of the above are given due consideration when determining the risk 

exposure to the organisation.  Where the position is unclear, professional third 
party advice is sought. 

 
8. 

 
Risk Management 

  
8.1 
 
 
 
 

The Director Management Team and Senior Management Teams are 
currently engaging with Mazars LLP (Internal Auditors) to enhance the Risk 
Management Framework and awareness at CBH. 
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8.2 If the Company does not have a robust Risk Management Strategy and Action 
Plan, then its progress to achieving its key goals will be impaired or 
unachievable. 

  
9. Appendix 
  
9.1  Appendix 1 – Strategic Risk Register  

 Appendix 2 – Risk Heat Map 
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07a. Strategic Risk Register - att 1.2

CBH Risk Register - 2017/18 Item 7 Appendix 1

Risk 
No Risk Name Possible Consequences Risk Type

Unmitigated 
Score Assurances

Current Score
Risk Owner Further Actions

Status Target Score Comments

Performance Management Action Plan developed for redesign of reporting and new 
structure

Dec-17

Look at alternatives to CAPITA for new business. Ongoing

Properly resourced initiatives.          Ongoing

Assessment for each project Ongoing

Establish a trading subsidary On-Hold

Review approach/methodology for collated information and monitoring and consider 
resourcing requirements where necessary On-Going

Develop partnership with the DWP to make most effective use of resources 
On-Going

Continual Review and reforecasting of the financial position to enable efficient 
deployment of resources within CBH and the wider HRA Business Plan On-Going

Implementation of Private Sector Letting Scheme (PSL) to offset escalating costs of 
Temporary Accommodation Started

Engage CBC for early discussions as to possible consequences for the social 
housing provision in the Borough On-Going

Develop Action Plan to manage the impact of the new regulations TBC

Engage CBC for early discussions as to possible consequences which include the 
demand and supply of affordable housing On-Going

Review of approach to Temporary Accommodation On-Going

Develop communication and information plan On-Going

10

The Bill (now Act) received Royal Assent in 
April 2017.  The Housing Options team has 
been restructured with the requirements of the 
new legislation taken into consideration.

Carry out a core business risk assessment before agreeing new projects. Ongoing

Maintaining close contact with DCLG to follow and 
comment on the implementation of the Act.  Board will be 
briefed on the Act and the likely consequences

15 Director of Housing

Ring fence new business wherever possible.                   
Trading protocol created.  Business Opportunities Panel 
in place.                                                                 Financial 
Risk Management for new business agreed.

Chief Executive/Director of 
Resources

Chief Executive6
Maintaining the regular liaison meetings at all levels.  
Chief Executive keeping a watching brief that these are 
maintained and effective.

10

The PSL scheme is now in operation.  
Inflationary pressures in the wider UK Economy 
are likely to have an adverse affect on CBH's 
operations, with assumptions within the wider 
HRA Business Plan under constant review and 
stress testing.

12 Director of Housing

6
Impact of 
Homelessness 
Reduction Act

Increase in demand for housing 
options and temporary 
accommodation 

Economic/            
Reputational 15

3

Relationship with 
CBC not 
maintained or 
effective

Detract focus of Board and senior 
management leading to damaging 
service delivery and new initiatives, 
ultimately closure of ALMO.

Reputational

12

Key personnel to be TUPED from Capita to CBC from 1 
April 2017.  Currently in a 6 month tranisition period 
where key processes/knowledge are appropriately 
documented and transferred

Director of Resources15

12

1

New Trading 
Opportunities 
Detract from Core 
Business and 
income achieved 
through new 
ventures is 
insufficient

2

Reduced Performance - Increase in 
complaints and loss of reputation                                   
Reduction in Council's confidence in 
CBH through failing to meet key 
expectations

Reputational/    
Professional/       
Economical

Transition of 
Support Contract 
from CAPITA to In-
House delivery for 
CBH's IT 
Requirements -  
leads to computer 
failure to meet 
business needs 

Service delivery impeded, restricted 
or compromised by IT systems 
breaking down or not meeting new 
business requirements, resulting in 
poor service and additional cost

Technological / 
Economic and 

Financial / 
Reputational

10 DMT

The economic environment 
(Inflation/Interest Rates), reduction in 
social housing due to RTB 
extension, selling vacant high value 
properties and changes in planning 
requirements, leading to 
Management Fee reductions and not 
being able to maintain contracted 
level of services.  CBH service 
delivery adversely affected due to 
financial constraints

Economic/            
Reputational

Increased resources to support tenants to maintain 
payment and claim Discretionary Housing payments; 
Close work with CBC Housing Benefits. Revision to 
financial inclusion strategy. Creation of digital inclusion 
strategy. Worklessness strategy. Increased payment 
methods available. Increased financial support and 
assistance. Increased opportunity for DD. Staff trained. 

Maintaining the regular liaison meetings at all levels and 
working closely with CBC colleagues to ensure impact is 
minimalised to continue to provide a social housing 
solution that fits the requirements of the Borough.  Annual 
management fee budget setting process.  Annually 
agreed Delivery Plan.  Regular liaison with Portfolio 
Holder.

15

155

Changes in 
economic & 
political 
environment may 
impact on financial 
viability of 
organisation

4

Business Development is a key theme of 
Proposed Strategic Plan.  There continue to be 
opportunities via CBC to provide professional 
services for Corporate Projects with other 
potential opportunities presented to the 
Business Opportunities Panel at each meeting.

Increasing Confidence was identified as a key 
component of the 'future proofing' project.  The 
appointment of the new CEO, who worked for 
CBC, has further strengthened the relationship 
between the two organisations, with regular 
meetings between the Chair, both CEOs and 
Porfolio Holder now taking place.

9

Financial inclusion team supporting those in 
financial difficulty.  Postive outcomes achieved 
from this and Grant agreement with CAB for 
debt advice.  Ongoing partnership for delivery 
of change with the local Job Centre Plus 

Welfare Reform Strategic Action Group set up with key partners within CBC and CBH

On-Going

4

6

Impact of Welfare 
Reform adversely 
affecting the ability 
to collect rents from 
tenants

Increasing financial pressure on 
tenants leading to possibility of 
increasing rent arrears, possible 
transfers and increase in 
homelessness, increase in court 
actions

Economic/           
Reputational

Transition arrangements are in place with new 
support framework in place from 1 April 2017.  
Corporate ICT and DOR are in regular dialogue 
to ensure there is no compromise to CBH's 
service provision.  Initial scoping solution on 
new Capita Housing Solution took place in 
June 2017.

15

9

9

No surprises, no blame culture:-  Celebrate what is good -    One organisation - where 
there is a joint accountability across teams and resolve                On-Going

CBH to have a key role in the establishment of the new Housing Development 
Company Sep-17
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CBH Risk Register 2017.18 - Heat Map Item 7 Appendix 2
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD 

DATE: 20 July 2017 

TIME: 5.30 pm 

VENUE: Room 1, Rowan House 

AGENDA ITEM: 8 

SUBJECT: Audit of Company Accounts 2016/2017 

REPORT BY: Michael Hadjimichael, Director of Resources 
 01206 507815 
  Michael.Hadjimichael@cbhomes.org.uk 

FOR DECISION 

1. Decisions Required

Following its meeting on 6 June 2017, the Finance & Audit Committee (F&A) 
recommends that the Board: 

1.1 Approves the 2016/17 Audited Financial Statements. 

1.2 Agrees that the Chair of the Board signs the Financial Statements. 

1.3 Agrees that the Chair of the Board signs the Directors’ Report. 

1.4 Agrees that the Chair of the Board signs the Letter of Representation. 

1.5 Agrees that the Chair of the Board and the Chair of the Finance & Audit 
Committee sign the Annual Governance Statement.  

2. Supporting Information

2.1 The Final Accounts for the Company for 2016/17 have been completed and 
audited. An unqualified opinion has been issued and the accounts are being 
submitted to Board for approval.  

2.2 A summary report to the Board and the detailed statutory Company Accounts 
are attached for your information as Appendices 1&2. 

3. CBH Accounts

3.1 The company made a surplus of £51,516 for 2016/17 before FRS17 
adjustments. The accounts have now been fully audited and this original figure 
has been verified.  

3.2 The completion of the year-end process was achieved within agreed 
timescales, thanks to support by key staff and our auditors, Scrutton Bland. 
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3.3 Set out below is a reconciliation between the surplus from the management 

accounts to the Financial Accounts: 
 

 £ 

Management Accounts Surplus 51,516 

FRS 102 Staff Costs Accounting 
Adjustment 

(522,000) 

Interest Charges (204,000) 
 

Deficit for Year (per statutory accounts) (674,484) 

 
4. Director’s Responsibilities 
 
4.1 As part of the consideration of the Financial Statements, the Chair of the 

Board is required to sign the Directors’ Responsibilities on behalf of the 
Directors. These are set out on pages three and four of the Financial 
Statements. The following arrangements have been put in place to provide 
confidence to Members in supporting this: 

 

 All accounting policies have been presented to the Board and are 
discussed with the External Auditors each year. 

 The Accounts have been closed on an accrual basis and any estimates or 
provisions have been supported by detailed workings. 

 UK Accounting Standards have been followed, and this is the second year 
that the financial statements have been prepared under FRS102. 

 The Accounts have been prepared on an ongoing basis and the External 
Auditor is satisfied that the FRS17 liability is supported by future funding 
levels from Colchester Borough Council. 

 Regular Management Accounts updates have been provided to the 
Finance & Audit Committee and expenditure has been maintained within 
the Management Fee. 

 Meetings have taken place between the External Auditor and the Director 
of Resources where all relevant audit information has been given to the 
Auditor. The Finance section has also provided the Auditor with a bundle 
of information and supporting evidence to meet the Auditor’s list of 
requirements for the audit. 

 
5. Letter of Representation 

 
5.1 In addition, the Chair of the Board is required to sign a letter of representation 

on behalf of the Board to the Auditors. In a change to previous years, the Chief 
Executive will also sign the letter of representation on behalf of the Directors 
Management Team. This letter is attached as Appendix 3. 

 
 
6. Financial Implications 

 
6.1 The financial implications are included in the body of the report. 
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7. Risk Management 
 

7.1 If the Company’s Annual Accounts are not signed by the Board and filed at 
Companies House within nine months of the financial year-end (31 December 
2017) the Company will be liable for a penalty and the Directors (Board 
Members) would also become liable. Subject to the Board’s approval on 20 
July, the accounts will be submitted to Companies House following the Board 
meeting and the Chair of the Finance and Audit Committee will be informed 
once this submission has been carried out. 

 
8. HR Implications 
 
8.1  There are no direct HR implications arising from this report. 

 
9. Equality and Diversity Implications 

 
9.1  There are no direct equality implications arising from this report. 
 
10. Legal Implications 
 
10.1  The legal implications are set out in the risk paragraph. 

 
11. Residents at Heart 

 
11.1 Not applicable. 

 
12. Appendices 
 
12.1 Appendix 1 – Auditors’ Report to the Board 

 
12.2 Appendix 2 – The Statutory Accounts (incl. Annual Governance Statement) 

 
12.3 Appendix 3 – Letter of Representation 
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES 
REPORT TO THE BOARD 
___________________________________________________________________ 

1 
 

 

1 Introduction 
 
1.1 In accordance with International Standards on Auditing 260 (“Communication with 

those charged with governance) we are setting out various matters relating to our 
audit of the financial statements of Colchester Borough Homes (“the Company”) for 
the year ended 31 March 2017.  

 
1.2 We can confirm that we have completed our audit work, subject only to the 

finalisation of our work in respect of events since the balance sheet date and the 
receipt of a signed letter of representation. We currently anticipate being able to give 
an unqualified opinion on these financial statements in accordance with the 
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.  

 

2 The Financial Statements 
 
 The financial statements can be summarised as follows:  
 
2.1 Income and expenditure account 
 

 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
 £   £     
   
Turnover 14,194,990 13,074,477 
   
Staff costs (6,513,161) (6,303,655) 
Other operating charges (7,638,233) (6,553,377) 
 ________ ________ 
 43,596 217,445 
Interest income 7,170 13,398 
 _______ _______ 
Operating surplus before taxation 50,766 230,843 
   
Tax on ordinary activities 750 (1,300) 
 _______ _______ 
Operating surplus after taxation 51,516 229,543 
   
FRS 102 defined benefit pension scheme 
charges: 

  

    Staff costs adjustment  (522,000) (618,000) 
    Interest costs (204,000) (209,000) 
 _______ _______ 
Deficit after defined benefit pension 
charges per financial statements                    

 
£ (674,484) 

 
£ (597,457) 
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REPORT TO THE BOARD 
___________________________________________________________________ 

2 
 

 
 
2.2 The income and expenditure account has been presented in the above format in this 

report in order to show the results before and after adjustments under FRS 102 in 
respect of the defined benefit pension scheme. The results before the FRS 102 
defined benefit pension scheme adjustments are the results that management are 
able to influence and control. The FRS 102 defined benefit pension scheme 
adjustments are only known after the end of the financial year and are determined by 
the actuary of the Essex County Council Pension Scheme (“LGPS”) 

 
2.3 The income and expenditure account of the Company can be considered to have 

three discrete components:  
 

• There are the costs of the direct labour work force and costs of materials which 
are invoiced at cost to Colchester Borough Council: therefore these transactions 
produce neither a surplus nor a deficit;  

 
• There are then the various overheads costs of the Company which are funded, in 

accordance with a budget, by a management fee from Colchester Borough 
Council. To the extent that the actual costs are greater than or less than the 
management fee, the Company records either a deficit or a surplus.  

 
• Finally, commercial activities such as the management of properties for external 

housing companies, as in the previous year, a small number of properties owned 
by the Co-operative Group have been managed, including the project in respect 
of refurbishing properties for Gurkha Homes. 

 
2.4 We do not consider that the surplus made by the Company in respect of the ALMO 

activity with Colchester Borough Council to be taxable. Any other surpluses made will 
be subject to corporation tax. Our work in respect of taxation is set out in Section 5.  

 
2.5 Balance sheet 
 

 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
 £   £     
   
Net current assets 1,386,720 1,300,621 
   
Less: Provisions (124,753) (90,170) 
 _______ _______ 
Net assets before FRS 102 defined benefit 
pension scheme adjustments 

1,261,967 1,210,451 

   
FRS 102 net pension liability (10,100,000) (5,835,000) 
 ________ ________ 
Net liabilities including FRS 102 defined 
benefit pension scheme adjustments 

 
£ (8,838,033) 

 
£ (4,624,549) 

 
2.6 The balance sheet of the Company shows net liabilities of £8,838,033 compared to 

£4,624,549 in the previous year.  
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3 
 

 
2.7 We consider that the most meaningful figure in considering the ability of the 

Company to continue as a going concern is the net current assets of £1,386,720    
(2016: £1,300,621). This is the surplus of the current assets over the current liabilities 
and is therefore closer than other figures on the balance sheet to a cash flow 
measure. This, together with the knowledge that the Company generally forecasts to 
breakeven, and that the management fee is received on a profiled basis from 
Colchester Borough Council, is indicative of the robustness of the balance sheet.  

 
2.8 The large liability of £10,100,000 (2016: £5,835,000) in respect of pension obligations 

is not an immediate liability to be met from cash flows: it represents the current best 
estimate of the pension deficit for those Company employees in the LGPS. The 
expectation is that future budgets presented to Colchester Borough Council will 
include the appropriate amounts in respect of future employer contributions and that 
these contributions will be then be funded by the management fee.  

 
2.9 Under FRS 102 there is a requirement for the pension surplus or deficit to be shown 

on the face of the balance sheet. As noted above, there is also a requirement for the 
income and expenditure account to be amended in order to show pension costs 
based on the current costs accruing, rather than on the basis of the employer 
contributions payable to the scheme. 

 
2.10 The net movements in the pension scheme liability are set out in Appendix 1. The 

key factor impacting upon this increase in the deficit is the actuary’s assessment of 
the discount rate. The discount rate that had been used to assess the future liability 
is the annualised yield at the 21 year point on the Merrill Lynch AA-rated corporate 
bond yield curve. The discount rate has fallen from 3.7%, as used in the 2016 
calculation, to 2.8% for the 2017 calculation, and this decrease in expected yields 
translates into significantly higher liabilities. As an example, a further 0.1% decrease 
in this rate to 2.7% would have the impact of increasing the present value of the total 
obligation under the scheme as at 31 March 2017 by circa £780,000. 

3 Main Areas of Audit Risk 
 
3.1 There is always a concern that certain material or subcontractors’ costs incurred by 

the Company may not be accepted by Colchester Borough Council. The Company 
makes no margin on the recharge of such materials and there is therefore no surplus 
available to absorb costs in such a situation. We have obtained confirmation from the 
management of the Company that there have been no such cases; we are able to 
confirm this by reviewing the recharges made to Colchester Borough Council and the 
accounting evidence that all costs have been recharged and not challenged to date.  

 
3.2 There is an audit risk that late costs may be incurred in relation to overheads of the 

Company. We therefore carry out a review of purchase invoices and payments after 
the end of the year in order to identify any such costs. We also seek to agree larger 
supplier balances on the bought ledger to statements from those suppliers.  
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3.3 There is a significant audit risk that the information in respect of the defined benefit 

pension scheme accounting requirements under FRS 102 may be presented 
incorrectly or may be based on inappropriate assumptions. We therefore review the 
detailed figures provided by the Actuary, including the assumptions, and carry out 
detailed reviews of the information provided in the financial statements with regard to 
the net pension liability and the pension costs. 

4 Controls 
 
4.1 During our audit we examined certain control procedures operated by the 

management team. We also reviewed the various reports issued by Mazars, the 
internal audit service to the Company. We note that there were various issues raised 
in respect of the payroll systems by Mazars, but do not consider that these have a 
material impact upon the financial statements or our report thereon. 

5 Taxation  
 
5.1 We are responsible for the corporation tax compliance work for the Company.  
 
5.2 It is our opinion that the nature of the surpluses made by the Company (comprising 

the making of savings on a management fee awarded by the sole member of the 
Company) is such that they are not subject to corporation tax as they do not 
represent surpluses from a taxable undertaking.   

 
5.3 During the year the Company has engaged in a number of trading activities, and as 

such any surplus in this area is subject to Corporation Tax.  

6 Independence 
 
6.1 We can confirm that we consider the partners and employees of Scrutton Bland LLP 

and Scrutton Bland Limited to be independent of both the Company and also 
Colchester Borough Council.  

 
6.2 In addition to the audit services, we provide tax compliance services to the Company. 

The fee in respect of these tax compliance services is very much less than our audit 
fee; we therefore do not consider that our undertaking this extra service impacts on 
our independence from the Company.  

 
 
 
 
Scrutton Bland LLP 
 
18 May 2017 
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Appendix 1 
 
Defined Benefit Pension Charge Adjustment 
 
 
  Balance Sheet  I & E 
  Dr Cr  Dr Cr 
    
    
FRS 102 interest adjustment   204,000 

Employer service costs   522,000 

FRS 102 interest adjustment  204,000   

Employer service costs  522,000   

Balance brought forward  5,835,000   

Actuarial loss  3,539,000   

Balance carried forward  10,100,000   

Adjustment to reserves  726,000   

  10,100,000 10,826,000  726,000 0
   

Effect on pension reserve  (726,000) 
   

Effect on surplus:    

- Pension charge   (726,000) 

Surplus after tax per CBH draft   51,516 

Deficit after tax per accounts   (674,484) 
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Appendix 2 
 

Letter of Representation 
 

COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED 
1st Floor 

Rowan House 
33 Sheepen Road 

Colchester 
CO3 3WG 

Company Number: 04843624 
A company incorporated in England and Wales 

 
Scrutton Bland LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
And Statutory Auditor 
820 The Crescent 
Colchester Business Park 
Colchester 
CO4 9YQ 
 
Dear Sirs 
 

LETTER OF REPRESENTATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 
 
We confirm that the following representations are made on the basis of enquiries of 
management and staff with relevant knowledge and experience and where appropriate, of 
inspection of supporting documentation, sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can properly 
make each of the following representations to you in connection with your audit of the 
company's financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017. 
 
We acknowledge our legal responsibilities regarding disclosure of information to you as 
auditors and confirm that so far as we are aware, there is no relevant audit information 
needed by you in connection with preparing your audit report of which you are unaware.  
Each director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to 
make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that you are 
aware of that information. 
 
Financial Statements: 
 
1. We acknowledge, and have fulfilled, as directors, our collective responsibility under 

the Companies Act 2006 for presenting financial statements (in accordance with the 
Companies Act 2006 and United Kingdom Accounting Standards), which give a true 
and fair view of the financial position of the company at the reporting date, and of its 
result for the period then ended, and for making accurate representations to you.  We 
confirm that we have approved the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 
2017. 

 
2. We confirm that the accounting policies and estimation techniques adopted for the 

preparation of the financial statements are the most appropriate to the circumstances 
in which the company operates. 
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3. Other than as disclosed in the financial statements, the company has not entered into 

any transactions involving directors, officers or other related parties, which require 
disclosure under the Companies Act or Financial Reporting Standards. Appropriate 
disclosure has been made of the control of the company. 

 
4. We have disclosed all known or possible litigation and claims whose effects should 

be considered when preparing the financial statements and these have been 
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of accounting standards. 

 
5. The financial statements of the company have been prepared on the going concern 

basis as we believe that adequate cash resources will be available to cover the 
company’s requirements for working capital and capital expenditure for at least the 
next twelve months. We are not aware of any other factors which could put into 
jeopardy the company’s going concern status during or beyond this period, other 
than as disclosed in the financial statements. 

 
6. There have been no events since the reporting date which necessitate revision of the 

figures included in the financial statements or inclusion of a note thereto.  Should 
further material events occur, which may necessitate revision of the figures included 
in the financial statements or inclusion of a note thereto, we will advise you 
accordingly. 

 
7. We confirm that we have been notified by you that either no unadjusted or only 

clearly trivial errors were identified during the audit. 
 
8. We confirm that we have agreed the adjustments appended to this letter which have 

been made to the Trial Balance which we presented to you for audit. 
 
9. We confirm we have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying 

value or classification of any assets and liabilities reflected in the financial 
statements. 

 
10. With regard to the defined benefit pension plan, we are satisfied that: 
 

 the actuarial assumptions underlying the valuation are consistent with our 
knowledge of the plan and our business; 

 all significant retirement benefits have been identified and properly accounted 
for; and 

 all settlements and curtailments have been identified and properly accounted 
for. 

 
Information provided: 
 
11. All the accounting records have been made available to you for the purpose of your 

audit and all the transactions undertaken by the company have been properly 
reflected and recorded in the accounting records.  We have provided to you all other 
information requested and given unrestricted access to persons within the entity to 
whom you have deemed it necessary to speak. All other records and relevant 
information, including minutes of all management and shareholders’ meetings, have 
been made available to you. 
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12. Other than those disclosed in the financial statements we are not aware of any 

material liabilities, provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets or contracted 
for capital commitments, that need to be provided for or disclosed in the financial 
statements. 

 
13. We confirm that we have notified you of all related party relationships, and 

transactions that the company has entered into with those related parties during the 
year of which we are aware. 
 

14. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of internal 
controls to prevent and detect errors or fraud, and have disclosed to you the results 
of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially 
misstated as a result of fraud. We are unaware of any irregularities, including fraud 
and suspected fraud, involving management, employees or others who have 
significant roles in internal control, or those employed by the company where the 
fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.  No allegations of such 
irregularities or breaches have come to our notice. 

 
15. We are unaware of any breaches or possible breaches of statute, regulations, 

contracts, agreements or the company's Memorandum and Articles of Association 
which might result in the company suffering significant penalties or other loss.  No 
allegations of such irregularities or breaches have come to our notice. 

 
16. We confirm that we have been notified by you that there are no matters which you 

are required to raise with us to comply with your profession’s ethical guidance which 
are in addition to the matters included in your external audit plan. 

 
17. We confirm receipt of your external audit plan and we confirm receipt of your 

management letter. 
 

18. We confirm that only one director received remuneration during the year and that the 
remuneration of this director, excluding benefits in kind, was £6,655 in the period. 

 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
 
Signed on behalf of the Executive 
 
Date: 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
Date: 
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Appendix 3 
 

Management Letter 
 
The Directors 
Colchester Borough Homes Limited 
1st Floor 
Rowan House 
33 Sheepen Road 
Colchester 
CO3 3WG 
 
 
 
Dear Sirs 
 
Colchester Borough Homes Limited 
 
Following our recent final audit in connection with the financial statements of Colchester 
Borough Homes Limited for the year ended 31 March 2017, we are writing to bring to your 
attention certain matters that arose during the course of our work, together with suggestions 
for improvements of procedures operated by the company. We hope that you will find our 
comments helpful and constructive. 
 
Our work during the audit included an examination of some of the company’s transactions 
and procedures with a view to expressing an opinion on the financial statements for the year. 
This work was not directed primarily towards discovering weaknesses or towards the 
detection of fraud. We have only considered matters that have come to our attention as a 
result of our normal audit procedures and consequently our comments should not be 
regarded as a comprehensive record of all weaknesses that may exist or of all 
improvements that might be made. 
 
Our work also included a review of the adequacy of disclosures in the financial statements 
and consideration of the appropriateness of the accounting policies and estimation 
techniques adopted by the company. This review identified no significant matters which we 
believe are necessary to draw to your attention. 
 
We would particularly draw your attention to the following matter: 
 
Going Concern - Pension liability 
 
The balance sheet includes a large provision of £10,100,000 in respect of the FRS 102 
defined benefit pension fund deficit. The inclusion of this provision means that there is a 
deficit of member’s funds of £8,838,000. If the future performance of the pension scheme 
remains identical to the assumptions made by the Actuary, then there would need to be an 
increase in total contributions into the pension scheme in order to cover the funding shortfall. 
 
We consider that the financial statements should continue to be prepared on the going 
concern basis, provided that the directors are of the view that increased pension 
contributions in future years will be met by the funding received each year from Colchester 
Borough Council. 
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Conclusion 
 
If you require any further information or assistance, we shall be very pleased to help you. 
 
We would appreciate an acknowledgement of the receipt of this letter and look forward to 
receiving your comments when you have had the opportunity of considering the matter that 
we have raised. 
 
This letter is for private use only. It has been prepared on the understanding that it will not be 
disclosed to any third party, or quoted to or referred to, without our prior written consent and 
we assume no responsibility to any other party. 
  
We should like to take this opportunity of thanking you and your staff for the assistance and 
co-operation we have received during the course of our work. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
 
Scrutton Bland LLP 
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their strategic report for the year ended 
31st March 2017. 
 
Principal activities and business review 
The principal activity of the company during the period was the repair and improvement of 
council properties, tenancy management, rent collection and arrears, and other property 
management associated services. 
 
The maintenance and repairs service contract with Colchester Borough Council (the 
‘Council’) continued throughout the year. 
 
Results 
The initial surplus after tax, but before FRS 102 defined benefit pension scheme adjustments 
for the year was £51,516 (2016 : surplus £229,543). This resulted in a deficit of £674,484   
(2016 : deficit £597,457) for the year, after adjustments for FRS 102 defined benefit pension 
scheme. 
 
The company has made a significant investment in the year, funded through business 
efficiencies and reserves on a new Health and Safety system (£45,722) and a company-wide 
initiative called ‘Working Smarter’ (£50,598) which is aimed at delivering further business 
efficiencies and enhanced customer experience. 
 
Financial risk management objectives and policies 
The directors consider that the main risks to the company are that expenditure is not 
controlled in line with the core funding provided by the ‘Council’.  The company has 
budgeting and management accounting procedures in place so as to control these risks.  
The company is also exposed to the prospect of greater cash outflows in future years in 
order to fund the deficit in the pension scheme, to the extent that this is not covered by 
improved investment performance. 
 
The company is assessed by various metrics applicable to similar housing organisations and 
is looking to be in the upper quartile in the various cost and quality benchmarks. The main 
key performance indicators include tenant satisfaction, the levels of overdue rents, the length 
of time taken to re-let empty properties, customer satisfaction with repairs, and the length of 
time taken to pay invoices. 
 
The company retains sufficient cash for its working capital needs and does not use other 
financial instruments for treasury management.  The company therefore has very little 
exposure to cash flow risk. 
 
New legislation, in the form of “The Housing and Planning Act” and “Homelessness 
Reduction Act” will have a significant effect on the way that the Company manages its 
operations on behalf of the Council. This could lead to substantial additional costs to 
maintain performance if not managed effectively. The Company is currently working with the 
Council to identify the key areas of risk and putting in place arrangements to mitigate these 
risks. 
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The directors are committed to ensuring that proper governance arrangements are in place. 
 
 
 
Registered office: Signed on behalf of the directors 
1st Floor 
Rowan House 
33 Sheepen Road 
Colchester 
Essex Ms A Grahamslaw     
CO3 3WG Director 
  
 
 
Approved by the directors on      

55



COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED 
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE 
 
Directors' Report  
 
Year ended 31st March 2017 
 

 

 

 
 
 - 4 -  

The directors present their report and the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 
2017. 
 
Matters covered in the strategic report 
Financial risk management objectives and policies are disclosed in the strategic report. 
 
Directors 
The directors who served the company during the year were as follows: 
 
Mr A Blois 
Miss M Carey 
Cllr N Chapman 
Cllr D Ellis (appointed 17th June 2016) 
Mr G Foster   
Ms A Grahamslaw   
Mrs C Graves 
Cllr J Havis (resigned 16th June 2016) 
Cllr M Hogg (appointed 17th June 2016) 
Mr G Houchell 
Cllr C Liddy (appointed 17th June 2016) 
Cllr M Lilley (resigned 16th June 2016) 
Cllr G Oxford (resigned 16th June 2016) 
Miss J Parker 
Miss D Philp   
   
Directors' responsibilities 
The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors' Report and the financial statements 
in accordance with applicable law and regulations. 
 
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. 
Under that law the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance 
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting 
Standards and applicable law). Under company law the directors must not approve the 
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs of the company and of the surplus or deficit of the company for that period. In 
preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to: 
 
• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
 

• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
 

• state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any 
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; 

 

•  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to  
 presume that the company will continue in business. 
 
The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to 
show and explain the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any 
time the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial 
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding 
the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and 
detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
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The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial 
information included on the company website.  Legislation in the United Kingdom governing 
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other 
jurisdictions. 
 
In so far as the directors are aware: 
 
• there is no relevant audit information of which the company's auditor is unaware; and 
 

• the directors have taken all reasonable steps that they ought to have taken to make 
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is 
aware of that information. 

 
 
 
Registered office: Signed on behalf of the directors 
1st Floor 
Rowan House 
33 Sheepen Road 
Colchester 
Essex 
CO3 3WG Ms A Grahamslaw 
 Director 
 
Approved by the directors on 
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We have audited the financial statements of Colchester Borough Homes Limited for the year 
ended 31st March 2017 which comprise the Income Statement, Statement of Other 
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Changes in Equity, 
Statement of Cash Flows, and the related notes numbered 1 to 15. The financial reporting 
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including 
FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”. 
 
This report is made solely to the company's member, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we 
might state to the company's member those matters we are required to state to the member 
in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do 
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's 
member as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 
 
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor 
As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement set out on pages 4 to 5, 
the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being 
satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an 
opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International 
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the 
Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors. 
 
Scope of the audit of the financial statements 
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: 
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company's circumstances and have 
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by directors; and the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.  In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the 
Directors’ Report and the Strategic Report to identify material inconsistencies with the 
audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially 
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the 
course of performing the audit.  If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements 
or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report. 
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Opinion on financial statements 
In our opinion the financial statements: 
 
• give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31st March 2017 and 

of its deficit for the year then ended; and 
 
• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted 

Accounting Practice; and 
 
• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. 
 
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 
In our opinion based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given 
in the strategic report and the directors' report for the financial year for which the financial 
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and the strategic report 
and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal 
requirements. 
 
Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment 
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the 
strategic report or the directors’ report. 
 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: 
 
• adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have 

not been received from branches not visited by us; or 
 
• the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; 

or 
 
• certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or 
 
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 
 
   
 
 
 
 
TIMOTHY O’CONNOR (Senior Statutory Auditor) 
For and on behalf of  
SCRUTTON BLAND LLP 
Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditor 
 
820 The Crescent 
Colchester Business Park 
Colchester 
CO4 9YQ 
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Turnover 3 14,194,990 13,074,477
 
Staff costs 4 (6,513,161) (6,303,655)
FRS 102 staff costs adjustment  4/14f (522,000) (618,000)
Other operating charges (7,638,233) (6,553,377)
  --------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------  

Operating deficit  5 (478,404) (400,555)
 
Interest receivable 7,170 13,398
FRS 102 interest adjustment                                                      14f   (204,000) (209,000)
 --------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------  

Deficit on ordinary activities before taxation (675,234) (596,157)
 
Tax on ordinary activities 6 750 (1,300)
 --------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------  

Deficit for the financial year (674,484) (597,457)
 ================================================== =================================================  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The deficit for the financial year before and after adjustments 
required under FRS 102 in respect of defined benefit pension 
schemes is as follows: 
  
Operating surplus after tax 51,516 229,543
  
FRS 102 defined benefit pension scheme charges:                           
 Staff costs adjustment (522,000) (618,000)
 Interest costs (204,000) (209,000)
 ----------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------------------  

Deficit for the financial year (674,484) (597,457)
 ===================================================== ===================================================  
 
 

All of the activities of the company are classed as continuing. 
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Deficit for the financial year  (674,484) (597,457)
 
Actuarial losses/gains arising from pension liabilities 14b (6,969,000) 1,655,000
  
Difference between expected and actual return on 
pension fund assets and other actuarial losses  14b

 
3,430,000 (220,000)

 ----------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------------  
 
Total recognised gains and (losses) for the year  (4,213,484) 837,543
 ========================================== ==========================================  
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Current assets 
Debtors  7 1,407,255  1,186,110
Cash at bank and in hand 1,408,507  1,343,311
 -----------------------------------------------  ----------------------------------------------- 

 2,815,762  2,529,421
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one 
year  8 1,429,042  1,228,800
  -----------------------------------------------  ----------------------------------------------- 

Net current assets  1,386,720 1,300,621
 ----------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------- 

Total assets less current liabilities 1,386,720 1,300,621
 
Provisions for liabilities 
Other provisions  9  124,753 90,170
  ----------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------- 

Net assets excluding pension fund  1,261,967 1,210,451
   
Estimated pension fund liability                              14a  (10,100,000) (5,835,000)
  ----------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------- 

Net liabilities   (8,838,033) (4,624,549)
  ========================================= ========================================= 

   
Reserves     
Income and expenditure account – 
excluding FRS 102 defined benefit  
pension scheme reserve            13   1,261,967 1,210,451
FRS 102 defined benefit pension  
scheme reserve  (10,100,000) (5,835,000)
  ----------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------- 

Member's funds deficit  (8,838,033) (4,624,549)
  ========================================= ========================================= 
 
Under the Companies Act 2006, s454, on a voluntary basis, the directors can amend these 
financial statements if they subsequently prove to be defective. 
 
These financial statements were approved by the directors and authorised for issue on             
 and are signed on their behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
Ms A Grahamslaw 
Director    
 
Company Registration Number: 04843624  
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                                                                                                     Income and 
                                                                               Defined         expenditure 
                                                                                benefit             account 
                                                                               pension           excluding 
                                                                                scheme            pension 
                                                                                reserve             reserve             Total 
 £        £       £         
    
At 1 April 2015 (6,443,000) 980,908 (5,462,092)
  
Surplus/(deficit) for the year (827,000) 229,543 (597,457)
  
Other comprehensive income 
 for the year 

1,435,000 - 1,435,000

 _________________ ________________ ________________ 

 
At 31 March 2016 (5,835,000) 1,210,451 (4,624,549) 
  
Surplus/(deficit) for the year (726,000) 51,516 (674,484)
 
Other comprehensive income 
 for the year (3,539,000) - (3,539,000) 
 _________________ _________________ _________________ 

 
At 31 March 2017 (10,100,000) 1,261,967 (8,838,033) 
 =============================================== =============================================== ===============================================
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         £ £ 
 

 The notes on pages 13 to 25 form part of these financial statements. 
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Cash flows from operating activities    
Deficit for the financial year    (674,484) (597,457)
Interest received   (7,170) (13,398)
Taxation   (750) 1,300 
(Increase)/decrease in debtors     (221,145) 226,243 
Increase/(decrease) in creditors     200,242 (500,751)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions     34,583 (1,700)
FRS 102 defined benefit pension  
scheme  adjustment    726,000 827,000 
         _________________ _________________ 

Cash from operations    57,276 (58,763)
 
     
Taxation paid    750 (1,300)
         _________________ _________________ 

Net cash generated/(consumed) from operating 
activities     58,026 (60,063)
 
Cash flows from investing activities     
Interest received   7,170 13,398 
         _________________ _________________ 

Net cash inflow from investing activities   7,170 13,398 
 
         _________________ ________________

Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents   65,196 (46,665)
    
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning      
of year  1,343,311 1,389,976 
         _________________ _________________ 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  1,408,507 1,343,311 
   ================================================ ============================================ 
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1. Accounting policies 
 
 Company information 
 
 Colchester Borough Homes Limited is a company limited by guarantee, incorporated in 

England and Wales.  Its registered number is 04843624.  The registered office is Rowan 
House, 33 Sheepen Road, Colchester, Essex, CO3 3WG. 

 
 Basis of accounting 
 
 The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in 

accordance with applicable United Kingdom accounting standards, including Financial 
Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and 
Republic of Ireland’, with the Companies Act, and FRC Abstracts.   

 
 The financial statements are presented in Sterling (£) and are rounded to the nearest 

£1. 
 
 The financial statements show net assets before pension liabilities of £1,261,967            

but net liabilities of £8,838,033 once the provision for pension liabilities is included. The 
financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a going concern, on the 
assumption that the core funding from the ‘Council’ in future years will enable the 
increased pension contributions to be met. 

 
 After reviewing the company’s forecasts and projections, the directors have a 

reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources and support to 
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.  The company therefore 
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its financial statements.  

 
 Turnover 
 
 Turnover principally comprises of income derived from the ‘Council’ and is stated 

exclusive of Value Added Tax. 
  
 Income received from the ‘Council’ is for the management of Colchester Borough 

Homes and also relates to specific projects for which the money is earmarked. Costs 
are also recharged direct to the ‘Council’ in respect of additional property services work 
outside the management fee. 

 
 Included in turnover is an amount of £4,913,996 (2016 : £3,745,573) which relates to the 

recharging of property services costs incurred by the company.  A property services 
management fee of £4,795,448 was received in the year (2016 : £4,933,265). 

 
 Within turnover is also an amount of £22,000 (2016 : £22,000) relating to grants 

received and redistributed in due course. 
 
 Debtors 
 
 Short term debtors are measured at the transaction price, less any impairment/provision 

for irrecoverable amounts. 
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1. Accounting policies (continued) 
 
 Creditors 
 
 Short term creditors are measured at the transaction price. 
 
 Operating lease agreements 
 
 Rentals applicable to operating leases where substantially all of the benefits and risks of 

ownership remain with the lessor are charged against income on a straight line basis 
over the period of the lease. 

 
 The benefits of lease incentives are recognised in the Income Statement over the lease 

term on a straight line basis. 
 
 Pension costs and other post-retirement benefits 
 
 The company participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by 

Essex County Council.  The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the 
company. 

 
 Pension scheme liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using a projected unit 

method and are discounted to their present value using a quality corporate bond rate. 
 
 Pension scheme assets are valued at fair value at the balance sheet date. 
 
 The pension scheme deficit is recognised in full on the balance sheet. There are no 

deferred tax implications. 
 
 Provisions for liabilities and charges 
 
 Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or 

constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the company will be 
required to settle the obligation. 

 
 The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required 

to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the 
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. 

 
 A provision has been included for the expected reinstatement costs of the company's 

offices at the end of the lease. 
 
 The company recognises a provision for the annual leave accrued by employees as a 

result of services rendered in the current period, and which employers are entitled to 
carry forward.  The provision is measured as the salary cost payable for the period of 
absence. 

 
 
 
 
 

66



COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED 
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
Year ended 31st March 2017 
 

 

  
 

 
 
 - 15 -  

1. Accounting policies (continued) 
 
 Bank balances 
 
 The company's bank balances are managed as part of the treasury operations of the 

‘Council’.  Each evening the balances are aggregated with those of the Council and 
placed on overnight deposit. 

 
 Taxation 
 
 Any operating surplus of the company, before FRS 102 defined benefit pension scheme 

adjustments, arising from savings of overhead costs compared to the core funding 
provided by the ‘Council’, is non-taxable.  Taxation is chargeable only on the surplus 
from its activities with other housing organisations. 

 
2. Judgements in applying accounting estimates and key sources of estimation 

uncertainty 
 
 The preparation of the financial statements requires the company’s directors to make 

judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial 
statements. The key judgements and estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk 
of causing material misstatement to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within 
the next financial year are those made in respect of the defined benefit pension scheme. 

 
 Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex 

judgements relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to 
increase, changes in retirement rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. An 
independent firm of consulting actuaries has been engaged to provide expert advice 
regarding the assumptions to be applied in the calculation of the defined pension 
scheme liability, which at 31 March 2017 amounts to £10,100,000. Further details of the 
assumptions made are disclosed in note 14. 

  
 
 
3. Turnover 
 
 The turnover and profit before tax are attributable to the one principal activity of the 

company. 
 
 All turnover arose in the United Kingdom. 
 
 An analysis of turnover by class of business is given below: 

 
 
 
 

 2017 2016
 £    £ 
  
Rendering of services 14,194,990 13,074,477
 =================================================== =================================================== 
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4.  Particulars of employees 
 
 The average number of staff employed by the company during the financial year 
 amounted to: 

 2017 2016
Housing          89 95 
Property services 76 86 
Resources 26 22 
Senior management 13 11 
 ---------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------- 

Number of staff  204 214
 ============================================== ============================================== 

 The aggregate payroll costs of the above were:                                                   
 2017 2016
 £ £ 
Wages and salaries  5,371,374 5,289,278
Social security costs 473,412 356,710
Employer pension contributions 641,528 639,344
Redundancy payments  26,847 18,323
 ---------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------- 

 6,513,161 6,303,655
FRS 102 defined benefit  pension costs adjustment 522,000 618,000
 ---------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------- 

 7,035,161 6,921,655
 ========================================== ========================================== 

 The directors’ aggregate remuneration in respect of qualifying services was: 
 

 2017 2016
 £ £ 
  
Chair remuneration 6,655 6,598
Board expenses 10,651 7,504
 ---------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------- 

 17,306 14,102
 ====================================== =========================================== 

  
 The Chair of the Board is the only paid director, with the level of remuneration set by the 

Governance and Remuneration Committee. Other directors are only reimbursed out of 
pocket expenses. 

 
5. Operating deficit 
 
 The operating deficit is stated after charging: 

 2017 2016
 £ £ 

  ====================================== =========================================== 

          
 Internal audit relates to services provided by Mazars PSIA Limited. 
 
 

Auditor’s remuneration -  audit of the financial statements 13,450 12,100
Internal audit   23,483 23,305
Operating lease costs:  
  Other operating leases  416,372 391,995
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6. Taxation on ordinary activities 
 
 Analysis of charge in the year 
 

 2017 2016
 £ £ 

 Current tax: 
 

UK Corporation tax for the year at 20% (2016 : 20%) - -
Under provision in previous period (750) 1,300
 ------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------ 

Total current tax (750) 1,300 
 ===================================== ==================================== 

 
 

 The company is not subject to tax on its activities performed for the ‘Council’.  
Corporation tax is charged on services provided to other housing associations. 

 
 

7.  Debtors 

 
8.  Creditors:  Amounts falling due within one year 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 2017 2016
 £ £ 
  

 The Council 1,254,454 1,139,983
 Other debtors 13,336 12,087
 Prepayments and accrued income 27,710 34,040
 VAT 111,755 -

 --------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------- 

 1,407,255 1,186,110 
 ======================================== ======================================= 
   

 2017 2016
 £ £ 

  
 PAYE and social security 114,258 100,137
 VAT - 186,634
 Accruals and deferred income 1,142,419 761,161
 Trade creditors 95,945 103,727
  Other creditors      76,420 77,141 
   ------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------- 

 1,429,042 1,228,800 
 ====================================== ======================================= 
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9.    Other provisions                                                                                                                                    

 4,180 9,120 
  ==================================== ======================================== 

 
 The holiday pay provision represents holiday balances accrued as a result of services 

rendered in the current period and which employees are entitled to carry forward.  The 
provision is measured as the salary cost payable for the period of absence. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

             
                                                                                        2017      2016
        £       £ 
Provision for building reinstatement:   
Balance brought forward 23,100 19,250
Movement for year 3,036 3,850 
 ---------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------- 

 26,136 23,100 
                                        ==================================== ==================================== 

 
Environmental provision:  

 

Balance brought forward 9,120 4,000
Movement for year (4,940) 5,120 
 ------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------- 

 
Provision for privately leased building venture:  

 

Balance brought forward 3,502 3,220
Movement for year 1,182 282 
 ------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------- 
 4,684 3,502 
                                        ==================================== ======================================

 
Provision for holiday pay:  

 

Balance brought forward 54,448 65,400
Movement for year 35,305 (10,952) 
 ------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------- 
 89,753 54,448 
                                        ====================================                                        ====================================

   
Total provisions carried forward 124,753 90,170 
                                        ==================================== ===================================== 
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10.   Commitments under operating leases  
 
 At 31st March 2017 the company had total commitments under non-cancellable 

operating leases as set out below. 
 

                             Land & Buildings  
  2017 2016
  £ £ 
Operating leases which expire:    
Less than 1 year 187,990 187,240 
Within 2 to 5 years 646,110 639,960 
Over 5 years 269,750 434,640 
  =======================--------=================== ========================================== 

 
 

                          Other  
  2017 2016
  £ £ 
Operating leases which expire:    
Less than 1 year 114,685 216,221 
Within 2 to 5 years 61,089 134,923 
  ==================================== ===================================== 

 
 
11. Related party transactions 
 
 The company is an Arms Length Management Organisation under the ultimate control 

of the ‘Council’.  The company is taking advantage of the exemption not to disclose 
related party transactions with the ‘Council’ as the consolidated accounts of the ‘Council’ 
are publicly available. 

 
 Key management personnel received remuneration of £405,143 ( 2016 : £402,000). 
 
12. Company limited by guarantee 
 
 The company is limited by guarantee and has no share capital. The liability of the 

member, the ‘Council’, in the event of winding-up is limited to £1. 
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13. Income and expenditure account 
 

  
    2017      2016
           £          £ 
  
Balance brought forward  (4,624,549) (5,462,092)
Deficit for the year (674,484) (597,457)
Actuarial (loss)/gain in respect of the pension scheme (3,539,000) 1,435,000
 ----------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------------- 

Balance carried forward (8,838,033) (4,624,549)
 ============================================== ============================================== 

  
Being:  
Defined benefit pension scheme reserve (10,100,000) (5,835,000)
Other 1,261,967 1,210,451
 ------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------- 

 (8,838,033) (4,624,549)
 ============================================= ============================================== 

 
 The level of reserves the company can hold is capped at an amount determined by the 

Council.  If this is exceeded, the excess will be paid back to the Council at the end of the 
financial year in which it occurred. 

 
 At 31st March 2017 there were committed reserves of £1,019,000 and uncommitted 

reserves of £242,967.              . 
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14.  Pension commitments  
 
(a) The assets and liabilities of the pension scheme and the expected rate of return at 
 31st March were: 
 
     2017     2016
 % of 

scheme 
assets           Value

% of 
scheme 

assets           Value
  £         £  
 

Equities 68.3% 18,582,000 67.7% 15,267,000 
Bonds 7.8% 2,135,000 7.7% 1,748,000 
Properties 9.7% 2,647,000 11.9% 2,687,000 
Cash 3.0% 819,000 3.2% 733,000 
Alternative assets 6.7% 1,814,000 4.4% 1,003,000 
Other managed funds 4.5% 1,209,000 5.1% 1,121,000 
  -------------------------  -------------------------
Total market value of assets  27,206,000  22,559,000 
     
Present value of scheme liabilities  (37,306,000)  (28,394,000)
  ------------------------------------------------------------------  ----------------------------------------------------------- 

 
Net estimated pension liability  (10,100,000)  (5,835,000)
  =====================================================  =================================================== 

 
(b) Asset and liability reconciliation: 
 
       2017        2016
 £  £  

Reconciliation of liabilities   
   
Liabilities at start of period 28,394,000 28,362,000
Service cost 1,154,000 1,258,000 
Interest cost 1,046,000 956,000 
Employee contributions 304,000 304,000 
Change in financial assumptions 7,492,000 (1,655,000)
Change in demographic assumptions (260,000) - 
Experience gain on defined benefit obligation (263,000) - 
Benefits paid (561,000) (831,000)
 ---------------------- ---------------------- 
Liabilities at end of period  37,306,000 28,394,000
 =================================================== ======================================================
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14.  Pension commitments (continued) 
 

(b) Asset and liability reconciliation: (continued) 

 
 
(c) Return on scheme assets: 
 
 The overall return on scheme assets is estimated to be 20% in 2016/17. This figure will 

vary year on year depending on the assumptions made and the underlying distribution 
of the fund’s assets which will vary during the year and as a result it is not appropriate to 
break down the return on assets across the different asset categories. Actual returns on 
scheme assets have been £4,272,000 for the year to 31st March 2017. 

 
(d)   A full actuarial valuation was carried out for the defined benefit scheme at 31st March 

2016 and updated to 31st March 2017 by Barnett Waddingham using the Projected unit 
method. The major assumptions used by the actuary were: 
         2017        2016
         %         % 

 Main assumptions: 
Rate of increase in salaries 4.2 4.2  
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 2.7 2.4  
Discount rate 2.8 3.7  
 
    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

      2017  2016
        £              £  
Reconciliation of assets  
  
Assets at start of period 22,559,000 21,919,000
Interest on assets 842,000 747,000 
Return on assets less interest 3,604,000 (220,000)
Other actuarial losses (174,000) - 
Employer contributions 641,000 651,000 
Employee contributions 304,000 304,000 
Benefits received (561,000) (831,000)
Administrative expenses (9,000) (11,000)
 -------------------- ---------------------------------------------------------

Assets at end of period 27,206,000 22,559,000 

 ================================================== =====================================================
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14.  Pension commitments (continued) 
 
(e) Movement in deficit during the year: 
   
       2017        2016
 £  £  
 

At  1st April 2016 (5,835,000) (6,443,000)
Current service cost (1,154,000) (1,258,000)
Net interest cost  (204,000) (209,000)
Actuarial (losses)/gains       (note 14(b)) (3,539,000) 1,435,000
Employer contributions 641,000 651,000
Administrative costs  (9,000) (11,000)
             ----------------------------------------------------            ---------------------------------------------------- 

At  31st March 2017 (10,100,000) (5,835,000)
  ============================================== ================================================ 

  
 The Council supports the annual pension contributions due from Colchester Borough 

Homes, including the back funding, through the management fee. 
  

FRS 102 disclosures are not on the same basis as the triennial actuarial review of the 
pension fund valuation and the two are for different purposes. These disclosures are a 
one off assessment at the year end for accounting disclosure purposes. The FRS 102 
calculations are more prescriptive. At the current time they emphasise the liabilities and 
produce a balance sheet position worse than the triennial valuation position.  
 
While the figure is substantial it should be remembered that: 

 
• It is not an immediate deficit that has to be met now. The sum is the current 

assessment taking a long term view of the future liabilities both for existing 
pensioners and current employees who are accruing pension entitlement. 

 
• It is not a problem unique to Colchester Borough Homes or indeed ALMOs 

generally. There is a national problem for pension funds both private and public 
sector. 

 
• The Essex County Council Pension Fund is regularly reviewed and additional 

contributions have already been initiated to address the problem over a period of 
years. 
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14.  Pension commitments (continued) 
 

(f) Analysis of the amount charged to the income and expenditure account:  
 

  2017   2016
  £  £ 

 
Current service cost  1,154,000 1,258,000 
Employer contributions (641,000) (651,000) 
Administration Costs  9,000 11,000 
           ---------------------------------------------            --------------------------------------------- 

FRS 102 adjustment 
522,000 618,000

   ========================================== ======================================== 

 
 Analysis of amounts charged to finance costs:  
 

  2017        2016
  £  £ 

 
Other finance costs: expected return on assets in 
the scheme 842,000 747,000 
Other finance costs: interest costs (1,046,000) (956,000) 
              ---------------------------------------------------            --------------------------------------------------- 

Net cost (204,000) (209,000)
   ========================================== ============================================== 

  
During the year to 31 March 2017 the employer contribution rate was 14%. This has 
risen to 16.6% with effect from 1 April 2017.  

 
(g) Life assumptions: 
 

          2017            2016
Life expectancy:    

 
 Current pensioner aged 65  
  male 22.1 22.9
 female 24.6 25.3

 
 Future pensioner aged 65 in 20 years time  
  male 24.3 25.2
 female 26.9 27.7
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15.  Financial Instruments 
 
 

  2017        2016
  £  £ 
Financial assets which are debt instruments 
measured at amortised cost £ 1,267,790 £ 1,152,070 
   ========================================== ============================================== 

  
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost £ 1,301,784 £ 928,429 
   ========================================== ============================================== 

  
  
 Financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise balances due from the Council 

and other debtors. 
 
 Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost comprise trade creditors, other creditors 

and accruals.
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 The following pages do not form part of the statutory financial statements 
 which are the subject of the independent auditor's report on pages 6 to 7.
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 - 27 -  

Turnover 
Management fee  8,947,948 9,125,890
Property services and recharges  4,913,996 3,745,573
Grant income  22,000 22,000
Other income  311,046 181,014
  --------------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------------  

  14,194,990 13,074,477
Operating costs (before FRS 102 defined  
benefit pension scheme adjustment) 
Staff costs 6,513,161  6,303,655
Other operating charges 7,638,233  6,553,377
 ---------------------------------------------------  --------------------------------------------------- 

  14,151,394 12,857,032
  --------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- 

Operating surplus  43,596 217,445
Interest on management fee 7,170 13,398
 -------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------- 

Surplus on ordinary activities 50,766 230,843
FRS 102 defined benefit pension scheme
staff cost adjustments (522,000) (618,000)
FRS 102 defined benefit pension scheme
interest adjustment (204,000) (209,000)
 --------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- 

Deficit on ordinary activities post FRS 102
defined benefit pension scheme 
adjustment and pre taxation (675,234) (596,157)
 ============================================== =============================================  
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                                                                                                           2017   2016
 £ £ £    
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Staff costs 
Salaries 5,371,374  5,289,278
Employers national insurance contributions 473,412  356,710
Staff pension contributions 641,528  639,344
Redundancy payments  26,847  18,323
 ----------------------------------------------------  ---------------------------------------------------- 

  6,513,161 6,303,655
FRS 102 pension costs adjustment   522,000 618,000
  ---------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------- 

  7,035,161 6,921,655
  ========================================== ============================================== 

Other operating charges 
Establishment expenses: 
Rent, rates, water and management fees 304,092  283,845
Light and heat 9,519  8,204
Insurance 109,284  91,400
Repairs and maintenance 2,883  32,287
Other establishment expenses 64,710  63,672
 --------------------------------------------------  -------------------------------------------------- 

 490,488 479,408
  
General expenses: 
Travel and subsistence  13,819  9,204
Telephone 71,685  81,357
Publicity, printing, postage and stationery 113,995  132,011
Staff subscriptions 7,848  5,484
Staff training 89,628  134,336
Other staff related expenses 22,470  36,206
Recruitment 4,251  36,269
Grants 22,000  22,000
Catering 9,213  11,487
Support services 580,446  476,411
Internal auditors remuneration 23,483  23,305
Auditors remuneration 13,450  12,100
Accreditation expenses 5,962  8,044
Consultancy, support and subcontract costs 26,088  42,409
Bad debts -  (1,178)
Materials, repairs and equipment 437,903  453,582
Motor expenses 256,987  237,607
Sub contractors 5,348,779  4,352,211
Working smarter project 50,598  -
Assure 45,430  -
Provisions 2,649  -
 ----------------------------------------------  ----------------------------------------------- 

  7,146,684 6,072,845
Financial costs: 
Bank charges  1,061 1,124
  ---------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------- 

  7,638,233 6,553,377
  ========================================= =========================================== 
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1.  Scope of Responsibility 
 
 Colchester Borough Homes (CBH), formed in October 2003, is the Arms-Length 

Management Organisation of Colchester Borough Council (CBC), responsible for the 
management and maintenance of the Council's homes and transferred general fund 
services. In 2016/17, these were primarily financed from the Council through a 
Management Fee of £8,947,948. This fee also includes Property Services professional 
fees, Corporate Facilities management fee and CBH Revenue work costs. Property 
Services also manages capital and revenue work costs paid directly by CBC, totalling 
£6,962,000. 

 
 There is a formally binding Management Agreement between the Council and CBH in 

place until August 2023, with a review in 2020. This clearly sets out the governance 
arrangements that should apply between the two parties and complies with national best 
practice.   

 
 CBH is managed by a Board comprising four Council nominees, four tenants and four 

independent members. In discharging this overall responsibility, Colchester Borough 
Homes is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its 
affairs and facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements 
for the management of risk. Three committees report to the Board: Finance & Audit, 
Governance & Remuneration and Operations.  Additionally, there is also a Business 
Opportunities Panel. These all have formal, approved terms of reference, which are 
reviewed biennially. 

 
2. The Purpose of the Governance Framework 
 
 Good governance leads to good management, good performance, good stewardship, 

good public engagement and ultimately good outcomes for citizens and the service user.  
Good governance enables the Company to pursue its vision effectively, as well as 
underpinning that vision with mechanisms for control and management of risk. 

 
 The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values by 

which the Company is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts 
to, engages with and serves the community. It enables the Company to monitor the 
achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led 
to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services. 

 
 The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to 

manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, 
aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance 
of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process, 
designed to: 

 
• identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Company’s policies, aims 

and objectives 

• to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they 
be realised 

• to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 
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 The governance framework has been in place at Colchester Borough Homes for the year 

ended 31 March 2017 and up to the date of approval of the financial statements of 
accounts. 

 
 Colchester Borough Homes exercises control through: 
 

• Corporate governance arrangements outlined in the Memorandum & Articles of 
Association, the Code of Governance and the Standing Financial Instructions.  

• The employment of suitably qualified and experienced staff to take responsibility 
for key areas of the business. This is supported by a formal annual appraisal 
system.  

• The preparation of forecasts and budgets that allow the committees and the 
executive officers to monitor the key business risks and financial objectives, and 
identify variances arising during the monthly reporting cycle. 

• Business planning is based on a 3 year Medium Term Development Plan that 
sets out key actions to enable CBH to achieve its goals for the ensuing year. This 
cascades through supporting Service Plans and individual performance 
appraisals. The key aims for 2017/18 are: 

 
 Maximise the supply of housing to meet local needs. 
 Work with partners and residents to create mixed and sustainable 

communities which are economically, environmentally and socially healthy 
and resilient.  

 Prevent homelessness and rough sleeping.  
 Improve the life chances of Colchester’s residents including their health 

and wellbeing. 
 Work with customers to enable them to make informed choices about their 

housing options.  
 Make the best use of existing homes.  
 Provide healthy, safe and energy efficient homes. 
 Ensure that housing and related services meet a range of specialist         

needs.  
 Manage and improve the Council’s corporate assets. 

 Ensure customers are at the heart of everything we do. 

 Make the most of resources and opportunities. 

 
 The Executive Management and the Board carry out regular review of performance 

against objectives and targets detailed in the Medium Term Delivery Plan. 
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3.  Review of Effectiveness 
 
 Colchester Borough Homes conducts, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of 

its governance framework, including the system of internal control that is in place, and to 
ensure it is appropriate to support the company’s objectives. The review of effectiveness 
is informed by the work of the Executive Officers and Senior Management Team within 
the Company, who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the 
governance environment. This is supported by the Internal Audit’s annual report, and by 
comments made by external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates. 

 
 The company produces a Medium Term Delivery Plan every three years, which is 

refreshed every year. From this plan, Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and projects 
are produced. A performance and scrutiny framework is in place to review and 
monitor delivery against these. This is a combination of company, tenants and CBC 
scrutiny as well as benchmarking against other providers. 

 
 CBH’s internal arrangements for ensuring the effectiveness of its governance 

arrangements consist of: 
 

• The Operations Committee receiving quarterly performance reports. 

• The Governance & Remuneration Committee monitoring the implementation 
of the Governance Action Plan and significant staffing matters. 

• The Finance & Audit Committee considering Internal Audit reports throughout 
the year, reviewing how well strategic risks are identified and managed, and 
monitoring financial performance against budgets. 

• The Finance & Audit Committee monitoring the regular review of key policies 
against an agreed policy review timetable. 

• The production and approval of annual Manager Assurance Statements by 
service directors and their teams to assess compliance with key governance 
processes throughout the year. 

 
 Internal Audit 
 

Internal Audit is delivered through a contract with Mazars LLP (Mazars). A five-year risk-
based Strategic Audit Plan was initially approved by the Finance and Audit Committee in 
June 2016, following the successful re-appointment of Mazars in April 2016. This is 
refreshed on an annual basis in consultation with the Directors Management Team. The 
updated plan was approved by the Finance & Audit Committee in June 2017.   

 
The audit plan was delivered, with reports issued to senior managers at the conclusion of 
each audit highlighting internal control weaknesses identified and the actions required to 
address them. Recommendations were also reviewed to ensure they were implemented 
properly by the due date. Reports were presented to each Finance & Audit Committee of 
progress against the audit plan as well as the status of outstanding recommendations.  

 
The Head of Internal Audit prepares an annual Head of Internal Audit Opinion (HOIA) 
report that includes an overall opinion on CBH’s internal control environment based on 
the results of the audit work completed. This was considered by the June 2017 Finance & 
Audit Committee. 
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 Internal Audit performance is subject to annual review by the external auditor of CBH in 

order that they can place reliance on its audit work. The Company provided the Council 
with the following assurance regarding the robustness of its governance arrangements 
during the year: 

 
• Internal Audit reports. 

• Summary results of Manager Assurance Statements. 

• The Annual Report, which incorporates the Head of Internal Audit’s annual report 
(including an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s systems of internal 
control). 

 
 External Audit 
 

External Audit of the annual financial statements is undertaken by Scrutton Bland LLP 
with a view to expressing an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with 
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). 

 
In carrying out the audit work, Scrutton Bland LLP will consider whether the financial 
statements are free from ‘material misstatement’. Materiality is an expression of the 
relative significance of a particular matter in the context of the financial statements as a 
whole. An item will normally be considered material if its omission would reasonably 
influence the decisions of those using the financial statements.   

 
 Scrutton Bland LLP will issue a report to management at the conclusion of the audit work. 

This will include a management letter that will contain comments and recommendations 
for improvements in operations and internal control in respect of the Company. This will 
be discussed with management prior to the issue of the final report. The report will also 
include details of significant adjusted and unadjusted items that arise as a result of the 
audit work.  

 
The Finance & Audit Committee considers the external auditor’s report and recommends 
adoption of the financial statements to the Board. 

 
4.  Significant Governance Issues from 2015/16 - Update 
 

In the 2015/16 Annual Report it was stated the need to carry out a disaster recovery test, 
which was already overdue.  Two tests were carried out in the year: 

 
• Communications Test 
• IT Access Test 

 
 A testing plan is currently being developed with a couple of key operational tests ear-

marked to take place in 2017/18. 
 
 In addition, the Business Continuity Plan (BCP) was formally reviewed and approved by 

Executive Management in March 2017.  This was also subject to an Internal Audit 
Review which was reported to the June 2017 Finance and Audit Committee.  CBH is 
working closely with CBC to ensure all BCP’s across the two organisations are aligned, 
due to close reliance on each other should the plan need to be activated. 

 

84



COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED 
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE 
 
Annual Governance Statement  
 
Year ended 31st March 2017 
 

 

 
 
 - 33 -  

 
5.  Significant Governance Issues  
 
 In 2016/17, Internal Audit provided an opinion of Limited Assurance in the following two 

areas: 
 

• Insurances 
• Payroll 

 
 Insurance 
  
 The key issue with the insurance audit was regarding the timing of the renewal process.  

As a consequence of the audit, we have commenced the annual process for 2017/18 a 
month earlier than previously to ensure adequate review and approval of the insurances 
recommended by the broker are both fit for purpose and value for money. 

 
 Payroll 
  
 CBC provide the payroll function on behalf of CBH.  In April 2016, CBC commenced the 

transition to a new system, which resulted in the short-term use of a payroll bureau 
system whilst the new system was being developed.  The inherent risks of the transition 
ultimately sit with CBC, but CBH are actively managing their risks with CBC to ensure an 
appropriate control framework is in place to protect its employees and its own reputation.  

 
 
Signed:                                                 
 (Chair of the Board) 
 
Signed:                                                 
 (Chair of the Finance & Audit Committee) 
 
 
Signed:                                                 
 (Chief Executive Officer) 
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED 
1st Floor 

Rowan House 
33 Sheepen Road 

Colchester 
CO3 3WG 

Company Number: 04843624 
A company incorporated in England and Wales 

 
Scrutton Bland LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
And Statutory Auditor 
820 The Crescent 
Colchester Business Park 
Colchester 
CO4 9YQ 
 
Dear Sirs 
 

LETTER OF REPRESENTATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 
 
We confirm that the following representations are made on the basis of enquiries of 
management and staff with relevant knowledge and experience and where appropriate, of 
inspection of supporting documentation, sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can properly 
make each of the following representations to you in connection with your audit of the 
company's financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017. 
 
We acknowledge our legal responsibilities regarding disclosure of information to you as 
auditors and confirm that so far as we are aware, there is no relevant audit information 
needed by you in connection with preparing your audit report of which you are unaware.  
Each director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to 
make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that you are 
aware of that information. 
 
Financial Statements: 
 
1. We acknowledge, and have fulfilled, as directors, our collective responsibility under 

the Companies Act 2006 for presenting financial statements (in accordance with the 
Companies Act 2006 and United Kingdom Accounting Standards), which give a true 
and fair view of the financial position of the company at the reporting date, and of its 
result for the period then ended, and for making accurate representations to you.  We 
confirm that we have approved the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 
2017. 

 
2. We confirm that the accounting policies and estimation techniques adopted for the 

preparation of the financial statements are the most appropriate to the circumstances 
in which the company operates. 
 

3. Other than as disclosed in the financial statements, the company has not entered into 
any transactions involving directors, officers or other related parties, which require 
disclosure under the Companies Act or Financial Reporting Standards. Appropriate 
disclosure has been made of the control of the company. 
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4. We have disclosed all known or possible litigation and claims whose effects should 
be considered when preparing the financial statements and these have been 
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of accounting standards. 

 
5. The financial statements of the company have been prepared on the going concern 

basis as we believe that adequate cash resources will be available to cover the 
company’s requirements for working capital and capital expenditure for at least the 
next twelve months. We are not aware of any other factors which could put into 
jeopardy the company’s going concern status during or beyond this period, other 
than as disclosed in the financial statements. 

 
6. There have been no events since the reporting date which necessitate revision of the 

figures included in the financial statements or inclusion of a note thereto.  Should 
further material events occur, which may necessitate revision of the figures included 
in the financial statements or inclusion of a note thereto, we will advise you 
accordingly. 

 
7. We confirm that we have been notified by you that either no unadjusted or only 

clearly trivial errors were identified during the audit. 
 
8. We confirm that we have agreed the adjustments appended to this letter which have 

been made to the Trial Balance which we presented to you for audit. 
 
9. We confirm we have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying 

value or classification of any assets and liabilities reflected in the financial 
statements. 

 
10. With regard to the defined benefit pension plan, we are satisfied that: 
 

 the actuarial assumptions underlying the valuation are consistent with our 
knowledge of the plan and our business; 

 all significant retirement benefits have been identified and properly accounted 
for; and 

 all settlements and curtailments have been identified and properly accounted 
for. 

 
Information provided: 
 
11. All the accounting records have been made available to you for the purpose of your 

audit and all the transactions undertaken by the company have been properly 
reflected and recorded in the accounting records.  We have provided to you all other 
information requested and given unrestricted access to persons within the entity to 
whom you have deemed it necessary to speak. All other records and relevant 
information, including minutes of all management and shareholders’ meetings, have 
been made available to you. 

 
12. Other than those disclosed in the financial statements we are not aware of any 

material liabilities, provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets or contracted 
for capital commitments, that need to be provided for or disclosed in the financial 
statements. 

 
13. We confirm that we have notified you of all related party relationships, and 

transactions that the company has entered into with those related parties during the 
year of which we are aware. 
 

88



14. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of internal 
controls to prevent and detect errors or fraud, and have disclosed to you the results 
of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially 
misstated as a result of fraud. We are unaware of any irregularities, including fraud 
and suspected fraud, involving management, employees or others who have 
significant roles in internal control, or those employed by the company where the 
fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.  No allegations of such 
irregularities or breaches have come to our notice. 

 
15. We are unaware of any breaches or possible breaches of statute, regulations, 

contracts, agreements or the company's Memorandum and Articles of Association 
which might result in the company suffering significant penalties or other loss.  No 
allegations of such irregularities or breaches have come to our notice. 

 
16. We confirm that we have been notified by you that there are no matters which you 

are required to raise with us to comply with your profession’s ethical guidance which 
are in addition to the matters included in your external audit plan. 

 
17. We confirm receipt of your external audit plan and we confirm receipt of your 

management letter. 
 

18. We confirm that only one director received remuneration during the year and that the 
remuneration of this director, excluding benefits in kind, was £6,655 in the period. 

 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed on behalf of the Executive 
 
Date: 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
Date: 
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Appendix 1 
 

Adjustments to Financial Statements 
 
Defined Benefit Pension Charge Adjustment 
 
 
  Balance Sheet  I & E 
  Dr Cr  Dr Cr 
   
   
FRS 102 interest adjustment   204,000

Employer service costs   522,000

FRS 102 interest adjustment  204,000  

Employer service costs  522,000  

Balance brought forward  5,835,000  

Actuarial loss  3,539,000  

Balance carried forward  10,100,000  

Adjustment to reserves  726,000  

  10,100,000 10,826,000  726,000 0
  

Effect on pension reserve  (726,000)
  

Effect on surplus:   

- Pension charge   (726,000)

Surplus after tax per CBH draft   51,516

Deficit after tax per accounts   (674,484)
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD 

DATE: 20 July 2017 

TIME: 5.30 pm 

VENUE: Room 1, Rowan House 

AGENDA ITEM: 9 

SUBJECT: Performance Assurance Report Q1 

REPORT BY: Karen Loweman, Director of Housing 
 (01206) 282805 
 karen.loweman@cbhomes.org.uk 

FOR DECISION 

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 To provide the Board with a high-level statement on the Company’s performance 
against the agreed Key Performance Indicators (KPIs). 

2. Recommendations & Decision required

2.1 That the Board notes the KPIs that are red or amber and considers the adequacy of 
measures in place to improve performance or mitigate impact.  

2.2 Decision required to approve an amended Void (Overall time to relet) target. 

At the Board meeting held on 21 February 2017 within the report to approve the 
Medium term delivery plan, the target approved for Voids was 20 days. 
This target had been proposed to provide an achievable outcome based on 
performance to the end of Quarter 3 (end December 2016) where performance of 
20.7 days had been achieved.  

The Council considered the year end performance outcome of 21.22 days and 
decided that the target may not be achievable, and approved an amended target of 
25 days.   

Approval is required from Board to amend the target within the Medium Term 
Delivery plan, on the CBH performance dashboard for Voids performance to 
25 days.        

3. Background

3.1 The Medium Term Delivery Plan contains a selection of KPIs that reflects the 
Company’s vision & objectives for the coming year as well as the targets by which 

91



these are to be measured. These are discussed and agreed by the Operations 
Committee and approved by the Board at the start of each year.  

  
3.2 
 
 
3.3 

The Operations Committee held on 29 June, included attendance from a Scrutiny 
panel member to discuss options for the next scrutiny topic.   
 
The Committee approved an updated Income Collection Policy, agreed the void 
target revision subject to Board approval and considered service area reports from 
the Housing Options team, Leasehold, Tenancy Management and Community 
Safety teams.      

  
3.4 The Operations Committee reviews the suite of KPIs at each meeting, and requests 

more detail where performance is below target. KPIs are shown as ‘green’, ‘amber’ or 
‘red’ against the performance target:  
 

 ‘Red’ - the indicator is not meeting performance expectation to date and/or is 
unlikely to improve by year end.  Forecast is that it is unlikely that the target 
set will be achieved. 

 

 ‘Amber’ - the indicator is not meeting expectation.  There may be mitigating 
circumstances and improvement likely, but risks are raised.  

 

 ‘Green’ - the indicator is meeting performance expectation, or as forecast 
top the next reporting period. 

  
3.5 This report gives assurance to the Board that any areas of concern are being 

monitored and addressed.  
  
4. Performance Monitoring – Quarter one (end June 2017) 

  
4.1 
 

The suite of Key Performance Indicators demonstrate some excellent outcomes 
with 10 of the 18 indicators achieving and exceeding performance expectation. 
 
The following Key Performance Indicators have a red or amber status at the end of 
June 2017: 

  
4.2 Anti-social behaviour – percentages of cases closed and not re-opened 

within 90 days - AMBER 
The performance during April and May achieved 100%, in June the outcome 
dropped to 80%, due to four recent cases of Domestic Abuse which were re-
opened. The number of ‘Open’ cases of ASB at the end of the period had 
increased to 130, of which 11 related to Domestic Abuse.         

  
4.3 Voids – Overall time to Relet (General needs including Capital improvement 

works) - AMBER 
The time taken to re-let empty properties has reduced from 25 days in April to 20 
days in June.  The year to date average of 23.3 days exceeds the original target of 
20 days.  If the decision to amend the target to 25 days is accepted, performance 
will be within the target range.  
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4.4 
 

Repairs satisfaction % (including Gas) - AMBER 
The levels of satisfaction outcomes from our contractor Mears has reduced, these 
would generally increase our satisfaction score.  The CBH returns indicate that only 
21 of 603 surveyed were dissatisfied.   

  
4.5 Percentage of Non Decent homes - AMBER 

Of the 5,917 housing stock, 907 (13.77%) are recorded as not achieving the decent 
homes standard. Works scheduled throughout the year are expected to reduce this 
number to 372 at year end.   

  
4.6 Average waiting time for calls - AMBER 

Call volumes increased during June with an increase in the number of enquiries 
relating to waste collection in Colchester.  Calls during April and May were 
responded to within target, but the delay in June to 44 seconds has affected the 
year to date performance outcome to give a 30 second average. 

  
4.7 % of stage one complaints upheld - AMBER 

A total of nine complaints have been received during the quarter, of which five were 
partially or fully upheld.  One complaint was received in June which was upheld. 
The year to date result of 55% is above the 35% target set. 

  
4.8 Former tenant arrears (£) - RED 

The former tenant arrear collection is maintained at a steady rate.  The end of 
quarter result of £321,960 outstanding is a reduction on the same period in the 
previous year.  The year-end target has been set at a level which will achieve 
upper quartile benchmark comparison, but without considerable write off of debt, it 
is likely that the target set will be unachievable.         

  
4.9 Current tenant rent collection (including arrears brought forward) – AMBER  

The profile of Direct Debit and Bank standing orders leads to a number of accounts 
showing account arrears through to the end of December (when a rent free week is 
applied).  Generally the level of rent collected is improving and collection levels are 
good.  The target to achieve 98.5% by the end of the year remains achievable.   

  
5. Financial Implications 
  
5.1 Annual budgets assume target level of performance for income and expenditure. 
  
6 HR Implications 
  
6.1 Staffing levels are currently considered sufficient to deliver the required service 

level. 
  
7. Equality and Diversity Implications 
  
7.1 Performance monitoring supports CBH to ensure that services are delivered in a 

fair and accessible way.  
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8 Residents at the Heart 
  
8.1 The CBH Scrutiny Panel attended the June, Operations committee meeting   
  
9. Appendix 
  
9.1 Appendix 1: Red and Amber KPI Dashboard slides.  

Appendix 2: End of Year Performance Dashboard 
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Item 9 Appendix 1

Performance Summary Information
Q1 - June 2017

Benchmark performance comparisons are with 33 housing providers 

in the HouseMark East of England group (as at December 2016)

2016/17

195



RAG status Key

2016/17 2

Colour Key Performance rating Local

R
The indicator is not meeting performance expectations to 
date and/or is unlikely to improve by year end.  Forecast is 
that it is very unlikely that the targets set will be achieved.

A
The indicator is not meeting performance expectations to 
date.  There are mitigating circumstances in most cases 
and improvement is likely but risks are being flagged in 
regard to this indicator.

G The indicator is meeting performance expectations to date, 
or as forecast to the next reporting period.
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ASB % of cases closed and not 
reopened within 90 days

95% 96% 97% 100% 100%
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Item 9 Appendix 2

P I 
no. Description 2016/17

Result
Apr 

2017
May 
2017

Cum to     
May 2017

Jun
2017

Cum to 
Jun 2017 QTR 1 YTD Supporting reports 2017/18

 Target

Perf 
rating
Local

H'mark Perf 
rating 15/16 
UQ National

H'mark Perf 
rating 15/16 UQ
East of England

Author Additional Supporting Comments re Performance.

Work with Partners and residents to create mixed and sustainable communities

1 ASB - % of cases closed and not re-
opened within 90 days. 

97% 100% 100% 100% 80% 94%  94% ASB11 and ASB7 96%
100%

99.63% 99.51% Sue Nice

Prevent homelessness and rough sleeping

2 % of housing options cases where 
homelessness was prevented

51% 36% 71% 60% 49% 56% 56% 56% 48% n/a n/a Tracey 
Brushett

Work with customers to enable them to make informed housing choices

3 Number of households in bed and 
breakfast accommodation

23 24 23  14  14 14 P1E 30 n/a n/a Tracey 
Brushett

Make the best use of homes in Colchester

4 Voids - Overall time to Relet - General 
Needs All including Capital

21.22 25.38 24.23 24.78 20.09 23.30 23.30 23.30 PS KPI Pack - R220 20 19.32 16.11 Tony Dale

5 Rent loss due to empty properties 
(voids) as a % of rent due (general)

0.25 0.20% 0.28% 0.25% 0.23% 0.26% 0.26% 0.26% PS KPI Pack - R240 0.45% 0.59% 0.50% Tony Dale

6 Percentage of under occupied Council 
homes

22% 22.1% 22.1%  22.0%   22.0% Under occupation 
summary month by 
month

22% n/a n/a Karen 
Williams

Provide healthy, safe and energy efficient homes

7 Repairs satisfaction (%)(including 
Gas)                              

99.21% 95.98% 95.79% 95.89% 98.35% 96.97% 96.97% 96.97% PS KPI Pack - R010 99% 86% 86.45% Kirk Braker When looking at Q1 CBH results only, 21 out of 582 people 
were dissatisfied with the service they received.

8 Average days taken to complete a 
(responsive) repair

6.41 6.87 6.47 6.66 6.89 6.75 6.75 6.75 PS KPI Pack - R060. 
Based on all B to E 
priorities, contractor & 
in-house repairs

7 6.64 7.61 Kirk Braker

9 Properties with valid gas certificate 100% 100.00% 100.00%  100.00%   100.00% PS KPI Pack - R120 100% 100% 100% Kirk Braker

10 Percentage of Non Decent homes 7.86% 16.15% 15.94%  13.77%   13.77% PS KPI Pack - C310 5.46%
(327 properties)

0% 0% Matt 
Armstrong

Of the 5917 stock, there are 907 (13.77%) Non Decent Homes. 

Make the most of resources and opportunities

11 Repairs and voids cost per property 
(£)

£493     £531 £697.42 £660.29 Sharon 
Stephens

12 First Call Resolution (%)
repairs calls only

85% 96% 94% 95% 95%   95% 85% n/a n/a Daniel 
Featley

13 Average waiting time for calls 
(seconds)

20 23 23 23 44   30 25
seconds

14.1 7.8 Daniel 
Featley

The volume of calls increased in June due to the new waste 
collection service which was introduced on the 20th of June.

14 % of stage 1 complaints upheld 35.7% 75% 25% 50% 100% 55% 55% 55% Capita reports 35% 42.11% 35.19% Ria 
Eustace

1 complaint received in June which was upheld.
A total of 9 complaints received in Q1. 5 of which have been 
partially or fully upheld.

15 Former tenant arrears (£) £329,202 £323,500 £318,391  £321,960   £321,960 CH1 report £285,900 n/a n/a Fiona 
Cass

16 Current tenant rent collection 
(including arrears brought forward)

98.85% 94.68% 101.06% 98.21% 96.13% 97.57% 97.57% 97.57% Rentround Report 98.5% 99.99 100.22 Karen 
Williams

17 Leasehold --Service charge collection 98.82% 18.64% 31.37%  42.02%   42.02% 98.7% n/a n/a Karen 
Williams

18 % of Corporate Buildings assets with 
condition surveys.

100% 100% 100%  100%   100% 100% n/a n/a Lee 
Spalding

PERFORMANCE SUMMARY
2017/18

The indicator is not meeting performance expectations to date and/or is 
unlikely to improve by year end.  Forecast is that it is very unlikely that the 
targets set will be achieved.
The indicator is not meeting performance expectations to date.  There are 
mitigating circumstances in most cases and improvement is likely but risks 
are being flagged in regard to this indicator.

The indicator is meeting performance expectations to date, or as forecast to 
the next reporting period.

Performance rating based on CBH YTD result and CBH Target
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD 

DATE: 20 July 2017 

TIME: 5.30 pm 

VENUE: Rowan House 

AGENDA ITEM: 10 

SUBJECT: Finance Assurance Report 

REPORT BY: Michael Hadjimichael, Director of Resources 
 (01206) 507815 
  michael.hadjimichael@cbhomes.org.uk 

FOR INFORMATION 

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 To provide the Board with a high-level statement of the financial position at 31 May 
2017. 

2. Recommendations

2.1 That the Board: 

 Note the financial position as at 31 May 2017.

 Note that Trading Activity has a relatively slow start to the year and will be
initially reviewed at the end of the 1st Quarter and reported at future meetings
.

3. Background

3.1 The Management Fee Budgets are managed on a risk-based approach with a high 
level of monitoring on the key risk budgets. These include salaries, premises, SLAs 
and new services taken on from the Council. The salaries budget represents over 
70% of the controllable budgets and a detailed model is used to monitor this. 

3.2 The Finance & Audit (F&A) Committee monitors the progress against the budgets 
in detail at their meetings during the year to ensure these are effectively monitored. 

4. Review of Financial Position as at 31 May 2017

4.1 Set out below is the actual outturn on the operating budget as at the 31 May 2017. 

107



Budget 
2017-18 

(£000) 

Profiled 
budget to 

31 May 17  

(£000) 

Actuals to 
31 May 17 

(£000) 

Variance to 
31 May 17 

(£000) 

Management Fee 

Management Fee - Income 9,351 2,238 2,238 0 

Management Fee - Expenditure 9,351 1,494 1,251 243 

Management Fee – net position   844 1,087 243 

Other Budgets 
Other Budgets

Capital (CBC and CBH) 8,911 1,627 1,611 16 

Revenue (CBC)  1,446 211 263 (52) 

Delegated Budgets 2,196 194 (83) 277 

The key reasons for variances are as follows: 

Management Fee 

4.2  2016-17 accruals still not fully expended.

 Vacancy factor on a number of budgets throughout the Company.

 Lower volume of repairs requested at this moment in time.

Within the management fee expenditure there is an expected overspend at year end 
of £85k for the General fund for the Corporate Facilities and Technical team. This is a 
known deficit and is to be supported through trading activity surpluses. 

Capital – all capital works 

4.3 The committed expenditure on the overall capital budget is in line with profile. 

Revenue CBC Contracts 

4.4 An accurate profile for gas servicing needs to be established to ensure the financial 
profile is relevant for each month as this is currently out of line on a straight line basis. 

Delegated Budgets 

4.5 This significant variance is due to accruals not fully expended at this moment in time. 
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5. 

5.1 

6 

Risk Management 

A strong financial control framework is essential for the successful delivery of the 
annual budget.  Monthly review of all expenditure items takes place and income 
invoiced and collected in a timely manner.  Any material items that may result in a 
significant deviation away from target will be reported to Finance and Audit 
Committee accordingly.  

Financial Implications 

6.1 

7 

7.1 

These are incorporated in the body of the report. 

Value for Money Implications 

Successful delivery on performance targets for the year within these financial 
constraints will meet the requirements of the Value for Money Strategy. 

8. HR, Health & Safety and Equality & Diversity Implications

8.1 None. 

9. Residents at the Heart

9.1 Residents are indirectly involved in budgetary control as they review our 
performance on a regular basis. Our performance on standards is underpinned by 
our expenditure. 
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Minutes of the Finance & Audit Committee Meeting 

Held at 5pm on Tuesday 6 June 2017 
In Room 1, Rowan House 

Present: In Attendance: 

Glenn Houchell (Chair) Alan Blois (AB) 
Julie Parker Tina Graves (TG) 
Cllr Nigel Chapman Michael Hadjimichael (MH) 
Geoff Foster Sharon Stephens (SS) 
Cllr Cyril Liddy Sarah J Johnson (SJ) 

Tim O’Connor (TOC) (Scrutton Bland) 
Alan Woodhead (AW) (Mazars) 
Vanessa Bateman (VB) (Mazars) 
Owen Howell (OH) (Minutes) 

1. Apologies for absence

1.1 Full attendance recorded and meeting declared quorate. 

2. Minutes of the meeting held 9 March 2017 and Matters Arising

2.1 The minutes were accepted as correct and ready to be signed by the Chair. All 
actions had been completed. 

3. Operations and Governance & Remuneration Committees: Assurance
Reports

Operations Committee 
3.1 AB presented the assurance report from his Committee and recapped its work 

providing oversight of performance and monitoring of KPIs. This included 
scrutiny of the setting of new KPI targets and offering recommendations on 
these.  

3.2 AB detailed the Committee’s policy review work and how this had progressed, 
giving information on why certain reviews had had to be delayed. The review 
process was now working smoothly and up to date. 

3.3 Members of F&A Committee raised the issue of Former Tenant Arrears (FTA) in 
relation to the planned audit in this area of work. The distorting effect of write-offs 
on this KPI was discussed, as well as how this affects our understanding of FTA 
levels. MH agreed and explained that transparency in this was being increased in 
co-operation with CBC so that a true picture of total FTA levels is seen. 

3.4 SS expanded on this to explain that workshops had been scheduled to deal with 
tackling arrears at an earlier stage, so as to reduce FTA. 

3.5 Judgements as to whether to write off FTA were based on likelihood of recovery 
set against the time, effort and expense of pursuing the arrears. 

3.6 AB confirmed to F&A Committee that his committee had received full support 
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and assistance from officers. 

Governance & Remuneration Committee 
3.7 Chair of G&R, TG, presented her report, including the work done on governance 

and Committee structures within CBH. 

3.8 TG confirmed that her Committee had been appropriately staffed and supported 
by officers. 

4. Amended Internal Audit Plan 2017/20

4.1 AW presented the revised Plan and addressed questions that had been raised at 
the previous Committee meeting, including areas which had been identified as 
potentially high-risk, and former tenant arrears (FTA). 

4.2 Owing to the previous audit showing substantial assurance in the area of gas 
servicing, it was not felt necessary to move up the next audit of this area of 
operations. Controls in place were judged to be robust and appropriate at this 
time. 

4.3 Regarding FTA, the audit for this had been scheduled for next year, but has been 
brought forward to this year. 

4.4 MH informed Members that there were a few spare days in the plan and that 
there was potential for an advisory audit on new governance arrangements and 
working practices at CBH. 

4.5 Decision: Committee approved the amended Internal Audit Plan. 

5. Internal Audit Progress and Follow-up reports

5.1 AW confirmed that Internal Audit progress was on track with 100% delivery. 

5.2 Committee formally noted the limited assurance rating from the audit of payroll. 
Many of the payroll processes are controlled by CBC under an SLA. MH 
confirmed that there had been issues as payroll functions had transitioned to a 
new system. HR and payroll functions now sit under the Strategic HR Manager at 
CBC. MH and AW have proactively taken up with CBC all concerns raised.  

5.3 AW briefed members on the significance of ISAE 3402. Where we engage a 
provider of an outsourced service, it is recommended that CBH places reliance 
on the provider’s ISAE 3402 report (produced by their auditors) as assurance 
that their controls and safeguards were appropriate and sufficient. When asked 
to produce an ISAE 3402 report, the provider of payroll functions (Midland iTrent) 
were unable to produce this and had claimed that they had not been asked for 
such a report before. CBC are pushing this to ensure that sufficient assurances 
are received from Midland iTrent. This is a Priority 1 recommendation. 

5.4 MH confirmed that CBC have been proactively seeking assurances and 
resolution to this. 

5.5 Committee questioned whether, where necessary, the production of an ISAE 
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3402 report can be made a requirement of a bidder for contracts such as this. 
MH confirmed that the company had shown that they had the appropriate ISO 
accreditations (shown in the Pre-Qualification Questionnaire/PQQ). 

5.6 In response to questions, AW explained that CBH does not offer the type of 
services which would necessitate the production of an ISAE 3402 report. 

5.7 Members questioned the Business Continuity Plan, asking if all of DMT had 
confirmed that they had reviewed the Plan and taken appropriate action. MH 
confirmed that this was the case. 

5.8 Regarding the follow-up report, AW summarised that no recommendations were 
past their due dates, with one recommendation not having reached its due date. 

6. Head of Internal Audit Opinion

6.1 VB reminded Committee that this report was a summary of the year’s internal 
audit work and assurances. This was required by the public sector internal audit 
standards, and the methodology used by Mazars has been independently 
assessed against the requirements of these standards. 

6.2 VB noted that, as this was a small audit plan, any change in assurance levels 
can look more substantial than it really is. In 2015/16, all audit areas were judged 
to have provided substantial or full assurance levels. In 2016/17, two audits 
resulted in limited assurance being recorded (payroll and insurances). VB 
explained that there was a trend in a slight reduction of assurance levels in the 
organizations which Mazars audits. It was also noted that audit plans were 
focussed on those areas of highest risk, so Committee should not be unduly 
alarmed that areas for improvement are being identified. 

6.3 The overall assurance level for CBH in 2016-17 has been judged to be 
‘substantial.’ 

6.4 VB informed Committee that she was working with CBH on approaches to risk 
management and other key areas. 

7. Annual Governance Statement

7.1 MH presented the Statement for recommendation to the Board. This Statement 
is a statutory requirement, is presented to full Board as part of the annual 
Financial Statements and is presented to the CBC Governance Committee in 
July 

7.2 It can be noted that the overdue item from the previous statement (Disaster 
Recovery/Business Continuity Plan testing) had been resolved, with tests carried 
out in the year. 

7.3 The Statement notes the two ‘limited’ assurances from Internal Audit. 

7.4 Committee questioned how best to consider emerging risks, especially in light of 
reductions in funding and legislative changes. This Statement is a retrospective 
document, and VB suggested referring to these considerations and how CBH 
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had approached it, within the ‘Review of Effectiveness’ section of the Statement. 
It was agreed that the Statement should be amended to include this revision. 
Action: MH to amend the Statement accordingly. 

7.5 Action: MH to amend ‘Executive Directors’ to ‘Executive Officers’ on pg. 77 and 
pg. 127. 

7.6 Decision: Subject to the amendments above at 7.4 and 7.5, Committee gave 
their recommendation that Board accept the Annual Governance Statement for 
2016/17. 

NOTE: Item 12 (CBH Financial Outturn 2016/17) was considered by 
Committee at this point as it was appropriate to note the content of this 
report prior to discussing item 8 (Audit of Company Accounts 2016/17). 

8. Audit of Company Accounts 2016/17

8.1 TOC praised the work of the CBH Finance Team for meeting the tight deadlines 
imposed by CBC. He went on to highlight the main points in the External Audit 
report and briefed on the FRS102 adjustments and how these impacted on the 
Financial Statements. 

8.2 Before the FRS102/pension scheme adjustments are applied, CBH has net 
assets of £1.26m, compared to £1.21m at the end of 2015/16. This is the figure 
used by the External Auditor to gauge whether the Company is a going concern. 

8.3 Once the pension liabilities are applied, these leave CBH with net liabilities of 
£8.8m, compared to £4.6m from the prior year. 

8.4 The key factor in this change has been the discount rate related to the AA-rated 
bond market. The details of this are given at 2.10 on pg 3 of the report from 
Scrutton Bland (pg. 85 of the meeting pack). TOC added that the actuary had 
downgraded life expectancy, which had somewhat lessened the effect of a 
decrease in expected bond yields which had increased CBH’s liabilities.  

8.5 TOC reminded Committee that FRS102 was a way of measuring the Company’s 
liability at a point in time and did not necessarily mean that this liability would 
crystalize. 

8.6 TOC noted that the adjustments in Appendix 1 detailed adjustments made 
following figures being received after the Financial Statements had been drafted 
and did not mean that anything had been missed during the drafting process. 

8.7 

8.8 TOC explained the Letter of Representation. MH confirmed that both he and 
Gareth Mitchell signed this on behalf of the Executive, in addition to the signature 
of the Chair of the Board on behalf of the Board of Directors. 

8.9 Committee were given assurance by TOC that the Management Letter did not 
identify any significant concerns, except the pension liability already detailed.  
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8.10 TOC noted that only pages 1-25 would need to be submitted to Companies 
House. 

  
8.11 CBH have been given a clean, unqualified audit report for 2016/17. 
  
8.12 The Statements again contain an explanation of the pension liabilities, including 

the funding provided by CBC to meet the costs of the pension commitments. 
TOC noted that pagination errors would be corrected in the production of the final 
draft. 

  
8.13 Committee questioned the item ‘Directors’ Aggregate Remuneration’ on page 16 

(pg. 110 of the meeting pack). TOC explained that this was standard wording, in 
line with the Companies Act, and covered directors’ remuneration. SJ clarified 
that this covered directors’ expenses as well as remuneration. Committee felt 
that this was misleading and requested that this be adjusted, with a line for 
directors’ remuneration and a separate line for directors’ expenses. Action: TOC 
to make this adjustment. 

  
8.14 On page 22 of the report (pg. 116 of the pack), TOC was asked what ‘Other 

actuarial losses’ related to. TOC explained that this related to sundry 
assumptions and forecasts which the actuary had made. Action: TOC will check 
to confirm what this referred to. 

  
8.15 TOC then explained that the ‘Change in financial assumptions’ entry on the 

preceding page referred to the movement in the discount rate (as it affected the 
Company’s pension liabilities. 

  
8.16 Chair pointed out that there was an error on page 31 (Annual Governance 

Statement) and that the amended Internal Audit Plan was approved at this 
meeting (6 June 2017) rather than in March. Action: TOC to amend the 
Governance Statement. 

  
8.17 Decision: Subject to the amendments listed above being made, Committee 

recommended these Financial Statements for the Board to approve. 
  
9. Annual Review of F&A Committee 
  
9.1 OH introduced the assessment and accompanying report, picking out the 

changes in individual ratings (shown by having red crosses), e.g. the downgrade 
to partial assurance for Issue 20, due to three members of F&A Committee also 
being on G&R Committee. Several items have been recommended as having 
improved from partial assurance to full assurance and the overall view from 
officers and Internal Audit is that Committee is performing well. 

  
9.2 Issues 64 and 65 were picked out, with members questioning whether these 

were justified as being marked as being fully complied with.  
 
It was explained that 65 rated a ‘Yes’ because Committee can request to meet 
with the External Auditors should they wish it. Action: OH to amend wording to 
replace ’30 minute’ with ‘Optional.’ 
 
Relating to 64, Committee requested that this be discussed, but for the purposes 
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of this assessment, change the rating for this issue to ‘In part.’ Action: OH to 
amend accordingly. 

9.3 Members questioned whether the CIPFA self-assessment model was sufficient, 
whether impartial outside assessment might help or if an alternative model of 
self-assessment might be more useful than the current one. These options were 
discussed. One option is to decide upon a list of assessment criteria and then 
each Committee member conducts an assessment of the Committee and the 
comments are then pooled and average marks taken to give an overall result for 
each criterion. Action: Julie Parker and Alan Woodhead to send details of 
alternative assessment methods and criteria to OH. 

9.4 It was pointed out that F&A Committee covers more than just audit issues, and 
this is not picked up by the current self-assessment. Furthermore, the majority of 
work going into the self-assessment is currently being carried out by officers and 
Internal Audit, rather than being led by Committee. 

9.5 Members confirmed that they were happy with the level of support they received 
as a Committee. 

9.6 Chair asked members whether, as the organisation became more commercial, it 
would be of use to have a regular brief paper on regulatory issues that were 
likely to, or did, require significant management attention. 

9.7 Decision: Subject to the changes detailed above at 9.2, Committee voted to 
approve the Self-Assessment for 2016/17. 

10. Strategic Risk Register Review

10.1 MH presented the Risk Registers and explained the new Emerging Risk 
Register. This includes issues such as the pension liability increase, with an 
increased contribution from CBH being expected in the year to come. DMT will 
review emerging risks each month. 

10.2 Committee agreed that this new Emerging Risk Register is very useful, but 
concern was raised that it should not be included in the public session of Board 
meetings. 

10.3 MH’s view was that this risk register can help officers to focus on putting in place 
mitigations for likely future risks. This has helped increase awareness and 
demonstrates an active risk-management culture. Committee agreed that it 
would be appropriate for risks which are placed on the Emerging Risk Register to 
be considered for discussion at future Board/DMT sessions. 

10.4 MH assured members that CBH was not affected by recent cyber-attacks on the 
public sector. CBC have informed us that we are not at risk from this form of 
attack, and CBC and CBH ICT staff are working to provide protection from all 
cyber-attacks, including educating staff to guard themselves against personal 
cyber threats. 

10.5 MH informed Committee that risk management training was to be rolled out to 
managers and line managers, carried out in partnership with Internal Audit. 
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10.6 Concern was raised that the averaging of risk matrix scores was very misleading. 
Individual scores indicated where a risk was located on the grid and did not 
indicate or represent a risk weighting. Committee asked for a simple table 
indicating the number of red, amber and green ratings on current rating and 
mitigated basis, for each of the current risk categories.Action: MH and VB to 
discuss this and find ways to produce such a table for F&A Committee. 

11. Update on Insurance Renewal Process

11.1 MH explained that, following being given a ‘limited assurance’ rating on the 
insurance renewal process last year, CBH had been proactive in carrying out 
Internal Audit’s recommendations and improving the process.  

11.2 SJ explained the reasons behind last year’s ‘limited assurance’ rating. This year, 
the process has been started earlier and meetings have been held with the 
broker to discuss what CBH wants. The broker has then worked on producing a 
range of options, based on our needs. We can then pick the best package for us. 
The deadline set for receiving these options is the end of June, giving a full 
month for CBH to choose the best option. 

11.3 It is expected that the Working Smarter Project will cause changes that may 
require a change in our insurances. This may mean that a variation to our 
insurances might be needed mid-term. The brokers have been informed of this. 

11.4 SJ clarified that efforts would be made to ensure that claims were paid out in a 
timely fashion, with agreements set as to what timescales would be observed for 
this. CBH has a low claim rate and is therefore an attractive potential client for 
insurers. 

12. CBH Financial Outturn 2016/17

12.1 MH introduced the outturn report and explained that the CBC requirement was to 
bring forward the deadline for producing the annual accounts by one week. 
Despite this added pressure, the Finance Team achieved this by deadline. 

12.2 SS and SJ introduced the outturn report, picking out the highlights, such as the 
£51.5k surplus generated by the end of the year. 

12.3 The variance analysis in Appendix A was pointed out, along with the reasons for 
these variances. 

12.4 A net surplus from external trading in the year was achieved. This came to 
£49.5k (compared to £54k projected). 

12.5 The carry forward requests listed at 3.4 for approval was explained, with details 
of each given. Decision: Requests for carry forwards were approved (decision 
shown at 1.2 of the report). 

12.6 It was explained that the references to ‘Councillor grants’ in Appendix C refer to 
the CBC Locality Budgets. Action: SJ to replace ‘Councillor grant’ with ‘Locality 
Budget’. 
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12.7 SS and SJ detailed the requests for uses of reserves, as shown in Appendix G. It 

was noted that the £65k requested for Welfare Reform was not necessarily to be 
drawn down, but would be ring-fenced within the reserves in case changes to 
Welfare meant that it would then be needed. It has been known that this has 
been coming for a few years now, so money has been set aside. It was expected 
that this would be needed in 2016/17 but this has not proved to be the case. 

  
12.8 MH explained that the SharePoint Project Officer position would be to support 

the IT Team with the rollout of Office 365. 
  
12.9 MH assured members that F&A Committee has the authority to rule on whether 

to sanction uses of reserves, as requested in this report (at 1.6). DMT will be 
looking at potential options for useful utilisation of reserves in the future and plan 
to bring potential options to Committee for its consideration later in the year.  

  
12.10 Committee agreed that it would help our relationship with CBC if the Company 

can show that it is effectively using its reserves to improve services and trading 
opportunities, rather than simply letting reserves accumulate unused. 

  
12.11 Committee questioned the budget item relating to Wimpole Road. SJ explained 

the provisions relating to the Wimpole Road properties (two flats above the Co-
op) which are managed by CBH. 

  
12.12 SJ gave an update on spending relating to the Working Smarter Project:  

 Expenditure of around £50k was incurred in 2016/17 for the initial stages 

of the Project.  

 £199k had been approved for 2017/18, with £9k spent so far, with a 

further £148k identified.  

 £40k was set aside for training, with £38k of this committed.  

 An IT budget of £45k was identified, but not yet allocated (CBC have 

agreed to purchase some of the IT hardware required). 

 £94k was allocated for accommodation adaption costs. CBC has paid 

£15k to install the new Wi-Fi system for Gosbecks. 

  
12.13 Committee expressed the view that they were keen to know that we were on-

plan and wanted to know if any unexpected significant changes or challenges 
occurred, but that they did not need to approve any reasonable virements 
between spending areas in the Project. 

  
12.14 Decision: Committee agreed and approved all points for decision (listed at 1.1 to 

1.6 of the report. 
  
13. Governance Actions 
  
13.1 OH confirmed that there had been no incidents or allegations of fraud since the 

last meeting of Committee. 
  
13.2 Regarding 3.2 of the report, Committee asked for the action relating to the 

updating of director details with Companies House to be amended to reflect the 
updating which followed the appointment of new Local Authority Board Members 
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in June 2016. Action: OH to make this amendment. 

13.3 OH confirmed that two applications had been received for the two upcoming 
Resident Board Member vacancies. Should both candidates pass a tenancy 
audit and be confirmed as having the necessary skills to fulfil Board duties, this 
will mean an election will not be needed and the appointments will take place at 
the Board meeting scheduled for October. 

13.4 Noting the ICT priorities report due for the Committee’s 27 July meeting, 
Committee asked if this could be a more strategic report than in previous years. 
MH confirmed that he would draft an IT Strategy. 

13.5 MH informed Committee that the replacement of Capita Housing Management 
would be discussed with Board on 14 June, and that there would also be a 
change in the IT function that supports governance. Action: MH to bring a high-
level IT strategy to F&A Committee for consideration on 27 July. 

There being no further business, the meeting closed at 18:48 
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Action List 

Item Action Who By When Done 

Item Action Who By When Done 

6 June 2017 

7.4 

Amend Governance Statement to describe 
how CBH has approached emerging risks, 
within the ‘Review of Effectiveness’ section 
of the Statement. 

Michael 
Hadjimichael 

04/07/17 

7.5 

Amend ‘Executive Directors’ to ‘Executive 
Officers’ in the second sentence of 
paragraph one on pg. 31 of the Financial 
Statements (The Annual Governance 
Statement). 

Michael 
Hadjimichael 

04/07/17 

8.13 

Committee requested that the item 
‘Directors’ Aggregate Remuneration’ on 
page 16 (pg. 110 of the meeting pack) be 
adjusted, with a line for directors’ 
remuneration and a separate line for 
directors’ expenses. 

Tim O’Connor 04/07/17 

8.14 
Regarding page 22 of the External Audit 
report (pg. 116 of the pack), check what 
‘Other actuarial losses’ relates to. 

Tim O’Connor 04/07/17 

8.16 

Change page 31 (Annual Governance 
Statement) to show that the amended 
Internal Audit Plan was approved at this 
meeting (6 June 2017) rather than in 
March.  

Tim O’Connor 04/07/17 

9.2 

Amend wording of criterion 65 answer to 
replace ’30 minute’ with ‘Optional.’ 

Relating to criterion 64, change the rating 
for this issue to ‘In part.’  

Owen Howell 04/07/17 Yes 

9.3 
Send details of alternative assessment 
methods and criteria to Owen Howell 

Alan Woodhead 
& Julie Parker 

04/07/17 

10.6 

Discuss and find ways to allow Committee 
to see if any individual critical/red risks 
were present on the operational risk 
registers in key or business-critical areas 
(e.g. Health & Safety). 

Vanessa 
Bateman & 

Michael 
Hadjimichael 

04/07/17 
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12.6 
Replace ‘Councillor grant’ with ‘Locality 
Budget’ in future finance reports, updates 
and appendices. 

Sarah J Johnson 
(and all Finance 

Team) 

With 
immediate 

effect 
Yes 

13.2 

Amend the action at 3.2 relating to the 
updating of director details with Companies 
House to reflect the updating which 
followed the appointment of new Local 
Authority Board Members in June 2016.  

Owen Howell 04/07/17 Yes 

13.5 
Bring a high-level IT strategy to F&A 
Committee for consideration on 27 July. 

Michael 
Hadjimichael 

11/07/17 Yes 
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Minutes of the Operations Committee Meeting 

Held at 5.00 pm on Thursday 29 June 2017 
In Room 1, Rowan House 

Present: In Attendance: 

Alan Blois 
Cllr Mike Hogg 
Michala Carey 

(Chair) Mark Wright (MW) 
Karen Loweman (KL) 
Karen Williams (KW) 

Cllr Daniel Ellis Tracey Brushett (TB) 
Kathy Fitzgerald (KF) 
Polly Hardy (PH) 
Sue Nice (SN) 
Owen Howell (OH) 
Dawn Tibble 

(Minutes) 
(Scrutiny Panel) 

1. Apologies for absence

1.1 

1.2 

Apologies were noted from Dionne Philp. 

Chair then confirmed that the meeting was quorate and welcomed officers and 
Members. Dawn Tibble from the Scrutiny panel attended following an invitation 
from the Chair. 

2. Minutes of the meeting held 23 March 2017 and Matters Arising

2.1 The minutes were examined and approved for the Chair to sign as being 
accurate. There were no outstanding actions.  

3. Scrutiny Panel Topic

3.1 Committee discussed suggestions for potential Scrutiny Panel scrutiny topics. 
Three potential topics were put forward for consideration: 

i. Fire Safety

ii. Make a Difference (MAD) Days

iii. Former Tenant Arrears reduction/collection

In addition, DT explained that the Panel had given consideration to a topic based 
on examining how our front-line customer services team (provided via CBC) 
operate. 

3.2 Committee agreed that it would be helpful to CBH for the Panel to scrutinize topic 
(ii) additional feedback and resident insight could assist to improve resident 
engagement. An officer led review of MAD Days is scheduled to take place soon, 
so it could provide a good scrutiny opportunity. 

3.3 Committee advised that topic (i) may not currently be suitable for scrutiny as, in 
the wake of the Grenfell Tower tragedy, this may cause confusion and doubt in 
contrast to the clear line that CBC/CBH have taken on fire safety and our 
statements that state that we are maintaining a high level of fire safety for 
tenants, leaseholders and staff. A fire action plan will be drawn up when more 
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details of the national situation and any potential changes in legislation/ 
regulations are brought forward. A Scrutiny Panel report on fire safety may be 
more helpful if conducted once the plan has been drafted. 

  
3.4 Action: Dawn Tibble to take these suggestions to Scrutiny Panel so the Panel 

can select a topic and then provide feedback to next Operations Committee.  
  
4. Income Collection Policy 
  
4.1 KW presented the Policy and explained that: 

 The main substantive change was to remove the procedural elements  

 The focus was on increasing collection and mitigating the effects of welfare 

reform. 

 There was no glossary. This will be reviewed prior to publication and added if 

required. 

 There would be no effect on the level of resources we expend in this area, but 

the Financial Inclusion Team make an important contribution to maximise 

tenant incomes and rent payment.  

  
4.2 KW informed Committee that CBH currently had 56 tenants receiving Universal 

Credit (UC), of which 86% were in rent arrears. Some changes in our working 
practices will be required to address rent arrears as more tenants move on to 
UC.   

  
4.3 Decision: Committee approved the Income Collection Policy. 
  
5. Void Re-let time KPI target amendment 
  
5.1 KL explained that, subsequent to Board approving the Medium Term Delivery 

Plan and KPI targets in February, CBC had informed CBH that they wished to 
amend the KPI target for void re-let time to 25 days (up from 20 days as 
originally proposed).  An average re-let time of around 20 days had been 
reached due to a low number of voids occurring in the past year. A new 
contractor has been appointed this year, and the level of properties becoming 
empty is increasing.  The revised target provides a realistic and achievable 
expectation.      

  
5.2 Decision: Committee recommend the amended void re-let time of 25 days be 

referred to the Board through the performance assurance report. 
  
6. Housing Options Team Service Area Review 
  
6.1 TB presented her report and briefed Committee on issues such as the improved 

service given by the restructured team, the reduction in homelessness decisions 
stemming from an increase in the number of homelessness preventions, and the 
possible effects of the Homelessness Reduction Act. The code of guidance on 
the Act will be examined once it is released and CBH aims to be compliant with 
the Act by the time it comes into force in April 2018. 

  
6.2 Action: Chair of Committee to note this presentation and the report when 

presenting these minutes to Board meeting on 20 July. 
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6.3 Following questions, TB provided clarifications, including that: 

 CBH has discretion to require a local connection before taking on a duty to

house and can direct out-of-area homeless people to apply in their own area

 There is an increase in homeless people living in ‘camps’ locally. CBH and

local charitable organisations do provide support and advice, but this cannot

always be done as a police escort may be required, but not always available.

7. Communal Services & Leasehold Performance

7.1 KF presented this report in place of Richard Dowling. The highlights were noted, 
including a better-than-target collection of service charges and an increase in 
satisfaction rates (as shown by the STAR Survey). 

8. Tenancy Management Team

8.1 KF presented this item and picked out work being done to reduce the numbers of 
tenants in arrears by simplifying the rent arrears process and staging earlier 
interventions. 

8.2 Joint visits with representatives of the Citizens’ Advice Bureau were seen as a 
success. Tenants often welcome the impartial presence of a CAB representative. 

9. Community Safety Team

9.1 SN highlighted key points. There has been a 33% increase in ASB reported over 
the past three years, and a 100% increase in the number of drug-related ASB 
incidents. An increase in reported drug-related incidents has been seen across 
the Borough and no specific geographical areas of concern can be identified. 

9.2 Pre-tenancy workshops may have contributed to a drop in evictions of under-25s. 
Following the success of the tenancy workshops they may be considered for 
tenants older than 25 who are assessed as vulnerable. 

10. Work Plan 2017

10.1 KL explained that the Tenancy Audit progress report had been deferred to allow 
analysis of the outcomes of the audits. 

10.2 The Monday 16 October meeting date had been kept for potential training, or a 
briefing by HouseMark, should Committee members wish for this. Committee 
requested that this be organized. Action: KL to book a HouseMark 
presentation/briefing for 5pm on 16 October. OH to inform all Board Members of 
this once details are confirmed. 

11. Any other business

11.1 No further business. Chair thanked everyone for attending. 

With no further business, the meeting finished at 6:33pm. 
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 List of Actions from Operations Committee 

Item Action Who By When Done 

29 June 2017 

3.4 

Take Committee’s suggestions to Scrutiny 
Panel so the Panel can select a topic and 
then provide feedback to next Operations 
Committee. 

Dawn Tibble n/a 

6.2 

Note the presentation and the report on 
Housing Options Team (esp. work to be 
done to ensure compliance with 
Homelessness reduction act when 
presenting these minutes to Board meeting 
on 20 July. 

Alan Blois 20 July ‘17 

10.2 
Book a HouseMark presentation/briefing for 
5pm on 16 October. Inform all Board 
Members of this once details are confirmed. 

Karen Loweman 
& Owen Howell 

24 July ‘17 
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2017 Board Forward Plan 

Date Item Committee Presenting 

19 Sep ‘17 Strategic Health & Safety Policy and 
Statement 

G&R Jul ‘17 
CEO & H&SM 

Approval of Company Annual Report n/a CE/Chair 

Annual Equality & Diversity Report n/a DoR 

Annual Report from F&A F&A Jul ‘17 Chair F&A 

Strategic Risk Register Review F&A DoR 

Standing Financial Instructions F&A DoR 

Annual HR Report n/a HoHR&G 

People Plan n/a HoHR 

Scrutiny Panel Report on Scrutiny 
Topic 

n/a 
HOH 

Information & Confidentiality Policy G&R Jul ‘17 BAO 

2 Nov ‘17 
Noting of Resident Board Member 
election results & New Independent 
Board Member appointment 

n/a 
Chair 

Review of response to Scrutiny 
Panel Recommendation on 
Temporary Accommodation 

Board 
DoH 

Strategic Risk Register Review F&A 
DoR 

‘Strategic Housing Market 
Assessment’ Presentation 

n/a 
(CBC) 

29 Nov ‘17 

To be 
rescheduled 
to Dec ‘17 

Staff Code of Conduct G&R Nov ‘17 HoHR 

Annual Resident Involvement Report n/a DoH 

Strategic Risk Register Review F&A DoR 
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